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Thereupon- 

RICARDO MORALES NAVARETTE, 

was c a l l e d  as a w i t n e s s  on beha l f  o f  t h e  ~ e f e n d a n t a  

and, having been f i r s t  du ly  sworn, w a s  examined and 

t e s t i f i e d  a s  fo l lowso 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR, WILLIAMSt 

Q1 I d e n t i f y  y o u r s e l f  f o r  t h e  r eco rd ,  p l e a s e ?  

A Ricardo Morale8 Nava re t t e ,  

QI A r e  you t h e  person  whose d e p o s i t i o n  

commenced on A p r i l  2nd, 1 9 8 2 3  

MS. COHAN; On o r  about?  

THE WITNESS: On o r  about ,  

BY MR, WILLIAMS; 

Q Before M s ,  Cohan and m e ?  

A Y e s ,  

(r And t h e r e f o r e ,  t h e  same person  who h a s  been 

t e s t i f y i n g  an  s u c c e s s i v e  businas.  days  s i n c e  then?  

A Y e s ,  

Q W i l l  you t e l l  m e ,  p l e a s e ,  M r .  Morales,  

d u r i n g  t h e  months o f  August, September, October,  

November and December o f  1980 and January  o f  1981, 

what were your p e r s o n a l  h a b i t s  concern ing  t h e  u s e  of 

a l c o h o l  o r  any chemica l s  i n t e r n a l l y ?  

A Before  answering t o  your q u e s t i o n ,  M r .  

Wil l iams,  s i n c e  p rev ioua ly ,  you always,  you know, 
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a d v i s e  m e  i f  I have r e c a l l e d  from a  p rev ious  depo- 

s i t i o n ,  you know, something t h a t  I would l i k e  t o  

s t r a i g h t  up f o r  t h e  record .  

Q Exac t ly .  

A And you have f a i l e d  t o  do s o  today. 

You know, I would l i k e  you t o  i n s t r u c t  m e  
k 

a g a i n  about  t h a t ,  about  t h o s e  i s s u e s ,  s o  I can r e f e r  

f o r  you whatever  r e c o l l e c t i o n  h a s  been made i n  my 

mind concern ing  pas t -  

QI How about  i f  you answer t h e  pending q u e s t i o n  

and then ,  w e  w i l l  go back and do t h a t ?  

~ e t * s  g e t  t h a t  q u e s t i o n  o u t  o f  t h e  way, 

A What q u e s t i o n ?  

(r The q u e s t i o n  is-- 

A No, I would l i k e  to--aince it was your  

normal procedure  eve ry  day t o  ask m e  i f  I have t o  make 

any co r r ec t i ons - -  

Q ~ l ~ u d e  you i n t o  a f a l s e  s e n s e  o f  s e c u r i t y ;  

d i d n *  t I ?  

A N o t  I thought  it w a s  t h e  p roper  procedure  

f o r  You s i n c e  i t ' s  been e s t a b l i s h e d ,  

(r NO procedure.  

A. W e l l ,  today,  I have tomake a f e w ,  

Q A c o r r e c t i o n ?  

A A c o r r e c t i o n .  



(r A l l  r i g h t .  

M r ,  Morales,  what i s  it t h a t  you wish t o  

c o r r e c t ?  

A I would l i k e  t o  c o r r e c t  t h e  p a r t  t h a t  you 

asked m e  i f  I e v e r  r ece ived  any moneys from t h e  

P u b l i c  S a f e t y  Department, and I have r e c o l l e c t e d  t h a t  

somewhere i n  1973, I ,  .myself,  on o r  about  t h e  mid- 

1973, I was t h e  g u e s t  l e c t u r e r  i n  a  class of  bomb 

d i s p o s a l  and bomb t echn iques  t h a t  w a s  h e l d  a t  t h e  

n o r t h  aampus a o l l e g e ,  you know, Dade Col lege  i n  n o r t h  

campus. 

0 Miami-Dade Community Col lege?  

A. Dade Community Col lege ,  n o r t h  campus, 

whioh was a t t e n d e d  by more t h a n  a dozen p o l i c e  o f f i c e r  

from d i f f e r e n t  m u n i c i p a l i t i e s  i n c l u d i n g  C i t y  o f  Miami, 

Miami Beach, and I j u a t  c a n ' t  reca l l  e x a c t l y  how many 

of them, and t h e n  I wae fo rma l ly  i n v i t e d  by t h e  P u b l i c  

S a f e t y  Department, and t hen  I was compensated f o r  my 

l e c t u r i n g  t h e r e .  

Also, t h a t  b e s i d e s  my tes t imony  t o  t h e  

e f f e c t  t h a t  I was instructed by t h e  F e d e r a l  Bureau of 

I n v e s t i g a t i o n s  t o  a s s i s t  i n  t h e  cuing- 

B T o  a s s i s t  i n  t h e  what? 

k I n  t h e  cu ing  of t h e  new p o l i c e  o f f i c e r s ,  

(r Cuing? 
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A Yes, since--well, since, sometimes, I 

understand your terms, you know. Then, you understand 

my terms. 

9. What do you mean when you say "cuingm? 

A Cuing means assisting them, breaking them in 

you know, streetwise, especially of--you know, some 

things like that. 

QI We already talked about that. 

A Right, besides the Federal Bureau of 

 investigation^. I was also told that by the Counter- 

intelligence Section of the Central Intelligence Agenc 

down here in Miami. 

8 Who, please? , 

A Joaquin Garcia, who was the head of that -- -----..-.--- ~- .-.%". . <".. , 

counterintelligence office. 

@ Was this at about the same time as those 

activities that you had described yesterday? 

A Yes. 

9 Are there any other particulars in which 

your recolleution has changed? 

- - - -  

A W o ,  r haven't-crhaagad -me-lf ections, - - - 

There have been no change in recollection. It has 

been additions to my recollections. 

a Any other particulars in which your 

recollection presently makes you think it appropriate 

to make, modify, or to add to any testimony that you 
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gave yesterday? 

A No, sir, 

Q NOW, would you please tell me, sir, during 

the months of August, September, ~ctober, November, 

and December of 1980- 

A August-- 

@ August to December of 1980. 

A August through-that's more easy--August 

through December or you're keeping adding months? 

A Or January of 19813 

A Up to from August--give me a definite span 

of time, Prom where to when? I am going to answer 

the question to you, Douglas. You know that, 

MS. COHANa What's the question? 

MR. WILLIAMS2 There is none pending, 

because the witness has not allowed ua to finish 

th e question, 

MS. COHANt IS this koyal *wea--us? 

MR, WILLIAMS: Yes. We would like to know 

what, between August of 1980 and January of 1981, 
- - 

THE WITNESS2 

right, 

BY MR, WILLIAMS t 

Q .  Was your-- 

- - - - - - - - - - - - -  - - - - - -  

Inclusive, January, 1981, 
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A I n c l u d i n g  up t o  t h e  31st--I  mean, to t h e  

end of  January ,  1981, r i g h t ?  

Q T h e  f e l l o w  i e  f r i s k y  t h i a  morning. 

MS. COHAN: So a r e  you. 

MR. WILLIAMS: H e  must have had a b o o s t  

from something, 

A r e  you ready? 

THE WITNESS: What do you mean by a b o o s t  

from something? 

What are  you implying by a b o o s t  from aome- 

t h i n g ,  s i n c e  I ' m  n o t  a r o c k e t ,  and r o c k e t a  are 

t h e  ones  t h a t  u s u a l l y ,  you know, a r e  boosted ,  

o r  b l a s t e d  is a  d i f f e r e n t  express ion .  

BY MR. WILLIAMS r 

(Ec A r e  you ready  t o  go w i t h  t h e  q u e s t i o n ,  now? 

A Y e s ,  I ' m  r eady  t o  go t o  t h e  question, b u t  

1 am n o t  r eady  t o  go through,  you know, your t h i n g s .  

Q The q u e s t i o n  is, what, between August o f  

1980 and January  o f  1981, w a s  your  r e g u l a r ,  p e r s o n a l  

p r o c e s s  concern ing  t h e  uae o f  a l c o h o l  o r  any chemiaalr 

i n t e r n a l l y  i n c l u d i n g ,  b u t  n o t  l i m i t e d  t o  mar i juana ,  

h e r o i n ,  coca ine ,  b a r b i t u a t e s ,  amphetamines, o r  any 

o t h e r  chemical  aubstanue t h a t  one might i n j e a t  f o r  

whatever  one ' s  purpose? What waa your  r e g u l a r  h a b i t ?  

A My r e g u l a r  h a b i t s ?  
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Q O r  p r a c t i c e ?  

k My r e g u l a r  h a b i t s ,  p r a c t i c e ,  o r  en joyments  

o r  p l e a s u r e s  c o n c e r n i n g  your  q u e s t i o n ,  I would . -  w e .  d r i n k  - -  

gohnny Walker Black.  I d r i n k  h e a v i l y ,  

I was s n o r t i n g  c o c a i n e .  I was smoking 

m a r i j u a n a ,  apd I was u s i n g  Valium to g e t  s l e e p ,  my 

n e r v e s  down, and t h a t ' s  a b o u t  it. 

9. You d e s c r i b e d  your  consumption of Johnny 

Walker Black as b e i n g  heavy. 

On a r e g u l a r  basis, how would you d e s c r i b e  

q u a n t i t a t i v e l y  your  c o c a i n e  u s e  d u r i n g  the t i m e  i n  

q u e a t i o n ?  

A On a d a i l y  b a a i s ?  

S Did you u s e  it d a i l y ?  

A Not p r e c i s e l y ,  you know. 

Q More o r  less? 

A More o r  less, you know, I would s a y  t h a t  I 

w f l f  t a k e  a gram, 

0I Each di- y? 

A Nope, 

B How f r e q u e n t l y ?  

A Oh, e v e r y  t i m e  t h a t  it was a v a i l a b l e  o r  

somebody went by t h e  t a b l e a n d  s a i d ,  "You want t o  t a k e  

you know, a s n o r t , "  and  I s a y ,  wYes, you know, l e t  

m e  have some," and I w i l l  take a q u i c k  s n o r t ,  you 

know, and t h a t  w i l l  s t a b i l i z e  m y  a l c o h o l  l e v e l .  
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MS. COHANa Maybe I missed something. 

Are we talking August, 1980, to January of 

19813 

MR. WILLIAMS: Yes. 

MS. COHAN: Okay. 

BY MR. WILLIAMS? 

0. Can you deacribe for me some quantity for 

some specifia period of time on an average that would 

reflect or describe your cocaine uaage during that 

period? Were you using a gram a day or a pound a day? 

& NO, no, you cannot use a pound a day, 

Douglas, and you know that. 

0 Wall, no, I don't. 

A Well, you should know that by now. 

OC Well, educate me. 

How muah is a gram; if you could? 

MS, CORAN: It's a Sweet 'n Low paeket, 

MR. WILLIAMS : Oh. 

THE WITNESS: I agree a Sweet 'n Low, 

Sweet 'n Low. 

43K 14RT IWZLLIAMSZ- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
I 

(r That's about a gram of cocaine? 

A That's about a gram of cooaine. 

MS. COHANt Sweet 'n Low comes in grams, too 

THE WITNESS: That was also a terminology 
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f o r  bad q u a l i t y ,  bad coca ine ,  

BY MR, WILLIAMS r 

(Fc What? 

A Sweet 'n Low, 

Oi I n  o t h e r  words, i f  somebody t o l d  you o r  

gave you bad coca ine ,  it would be d e s c r i b d d  as Sweet 

'n  Low? 

A Tha t  u s u a l l y  t h e  ones  t h a t  you g e t  at bars, 

you know, a t  n i g h t  s p o t s  and so f o r t h .  

a With what degree  of f rqquency were you us in5 

c o c a i n e  d u r i n g  t h e  p e r i o d  in q u e s t i o h ?  

A W e l l ,  e ve ry  t i m e  t h a t  I was d r i n k i n g  I 

was by t h e  Mutiny, S i n c e  c o c a i n e  w a s  t h e r e ,  you know, 

r e a d i l y  a v a i l a b l e ,  I would t a k e  a coup le  of s h o t s  

of  a o c a i n e  through my nose, one nose ,  I o n l y  used 

one,  t h e  r i g h t  one. 

I always use  t h e  r i g h t  one, s o  i n s t e a d  o f  

g e t t i n g  t h e  r i g h t  one c logged i f  it g o t  c logged,  I 

s t i l l  g o t  t h e  o t h e r  one t o  b r e a t h e ,  

(r You o n l y  use  one n o s t r i l ?  

B Only one n o s t r i l ,  r i g h t ,  s o  t h a t  way, 

o n l y  h a l f  of your  p e r i p h e r a l  g e t s  h igh ,  so t h e  o t h e r  

one s t i l l  c o n t r o l s ,  you know, whatever  you g o t  h i g h  

on, f o r  your  own e d i f i c a t i o n ,  

B Cute ,  
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A Cut@, 

M S .  COHANt I d o n ' t  t h ink : - t i ha t ' s  how it 

works, 

MR. WILLIAMS: I t end  to doubt  it, mysel f ,  

THE WITNESS 8 You have experienae. ' .why q o c  

are doubt ing  what I a m  say ing?  

BY MR. WILLIAMS8 

0 Who's a sk ing  t h e  q u e s t i o n s ,  

answering? 

and who i s  

A No, because  you are s a y i n g  t h a t  you doubt  

i t ,  you know. 

I mean, how come you a r e  going t o  doubt  it 

i f  you d o n ' t  have expe r i ence?  

Q We agreed  t h a t  I was going t o  be t h e  lawyer 

and you were going t o  be the wi tnes s .  

A Oh, b u t  don't-what I a m  s ay ing  w i t h o u t  

p rope r  q u a l i f i c a t i o n s ,  

T h e  r eco rd  w i l l  r e f l e c t ,  you know, t h a t  

you a r e  doubt ing  what I a m  saying.  

M S ,  COHAN: Right .  

MR. WILLIAMS: I d o n ' t  l i k e  t h i s  anymore. 

- - - - - T a t i f  WI2SESS t N e i t h e r  I, Dougla_s, - - 

- - - - 

I a m  g i v i n g  a s t r a i g h t  anewar. 

I d r i n k  a l c o h o l ,  you know, h e a v i l y ,  you 

know, d u r i n g  t h a t  f i n e  p e r i o d ,  t h a t  t i m e  p e r i o d ,  

t h a t  you a re  say ing ,  which i s  go ing  t o  be  cut 



by December, 

BY MR. WILL,IAMS 2 

9 Here's t h e  q u e s t i o n -  

A No, no, which i s  go ing  t o  be c u t  by 

December o f  1 9 8 0 ,  

9. Here's t h e  q u e s t i o n r  With what f r e q u e n c y ,  

i n  terms of days  o r  weeks o r  u s i n g  any  o t h e r  f a c t o r  

that you would t o  d e s c r i b e  it, were you u s i n g  c o c a i n e  

d u r i n g  t h e  p e r i o d  i n  q u e s t i o n ?  

A W e l l ,  it w a s  n o t  03 a d a i l y  b a s i s ,  you know. 

I t  may have  been  t h r e e ,  f o u r  days ,  w i t h o u t  u s i n g  

any one,  Maybe, I w i l l  t a k e ,  you know, a c o u p l e  o f  

s n o r t s ,  one day,  and t h e n ,  maybe I w i l l  bomb myeelf 

o u t ,  you know, t h r e e  o r  f o u r  grams i n  a p a r t y .  

Q Is  it a c c u r a t e  t o  say t h a t  whenever -it 

was a v a i z a b l e ,  whenever it was close a t  hand, you 

would use i t ?  

k W e l l ,  n o t  e x a c t l y ,  you know, Sometimes, 

it was t h e r e ,  and 1 d i d n ' t  have,  you know, t h e  desire 

f o r  i t ,  

Q Is i t  a c c u r a t e  t o  say t h a t  it w a s ,  i n  

any  e v e n t ,  a r e g u l a r  f e a t u r e  o f  your  l i f e  d u r i n g  t h a t  

p e r i o d  o f  t i m e ?  

A O f  c o u r s e .  

0 A l l  r i g h t .  
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& ' I t  was t h e r e  l i k e  food and a l c o h o l ,  and 

women, you know, 

0. To.what  deg ree  of  f requency were you smoking 

mar i juana?  

A W e l l ,  t h a t ' s  d i f f e r e n t ,  - Mari juana,  I was 

u s i n g  it on a  d a i l y  b a s i s ,  

Q! What q u a n t i t y  o f  mar i juana  were you smoking 

on a d a i l y  b a s i s  d u r i n g  t h e  p e r i o d  i n  q u e s t i o n ?  

A T h r e e ,  four j o i n t s  a day,  because ,  you know, 

pot--you g e t  a  h i g h  from one j o i n t ,  'and you- .could  
10 

smoke a j o i n t ,  and you wpn't go h i g h e r ,  
11 

8 What t i m e  of  t h e  day d i d  you normal ly  
12 

l3 I1 s t a r t  u s i n g  any of t h e - c h e m i c a l s  that you have des- 

l4 /I c r i b e d ?  When, d u r i n g  t h e  day, f o r  example, would you 

l5 I/ normal ly  s t a r t  d r i n k i n g ?  

A. W e l l ,  a t  t h a t  t ime,  I was a n i g h t  person,  

l7 11 s o  I was n o t  a day person,  

l8 11 There is a difference between day person ,  

l9 /I day people  and n i g h t  pe r sons ,  n i g h t  people.  

Q You are d e s c r i b i n g  t o  m e  a  s i t u a t i o n  i n  

.which your general p r a c t i c e  was t o  be awake most o f  I 
22 

11 t h e  n i g h t ,  and you would s l e e p  d u r i n g  t h e  e a r l y  o r  

23 I/ middle p a r t  o f  t h e  day? 

24 11 A No, Usua l ly ,  I ,  you know, I get o u t  o f  

bed sometimes around,  you know, l e t ' s  
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5 t 3 0 ,  

(r In t h e  a f t e r n o o n ?  

A I n  t h e  a f t e r n o o n  and t h e n ,  I w i l l ,  you know, 

go t h rough  t h e  normal  p r o c e d u r e s  o f  any p e r s o n  who i a  

waking up a t  t h a t  t i m e  e x a c t l y  a s  whoever, you know, 

wakes up a t  f i v e  o ' c l o a k  i n  t h e  morning, 

9. Oh, wha t  f o r  you i s  a r e g u l a r  day?  When 

r e l a t i v e  t o  wha tever  t h e  t i m e  was you a r o s e  would 

you s t a r t  u s i n g  any o f  t h e  chemica la  i n  q u e s t i o n ?  

k No, I was using t o o t h p a s t e .  

(r Here is my q u e s t i o n :  R e l a t i v e  t o  t h e  t i m e  

t h a t  you a r o s e ,  whenever it was, i f  it w a s  f i v e  i n  t h e  

a f t e r n o o n  o r  t h e  noontime o r  f i v e  i n  t h e  morning- 

whenever, r e l a t i v e - t o  t h a t  t i m e ,  when would you b e g i n  

t o  u s e  any  o f  t h e s e  v a r i o u s  c h e m i c a l s  f o r  wha tever?  

When would you s t a r t  t o  d r i n k  s c o t c h  r e l a t i v e  t o  t h e  

t i m e  t h a t  you awakened? 

A O h ,  I have t o  go t o  b r e a k f a s t ,  you know, 

and m y  hyg iene ,  my p e r s o n a l  hyg iene ,  .. I . _ ,  - 

. . .  and t h e n ,  I w i l l  h a v e . t o  go f o r  my b r e a k f a s t ,  
- - 

s o  ~ 8 u a l l y , - ~ f t e r  - b r e a k f a s t ,  w h i o k  w i i k  bct betwee* - - 

6 t 3 0  and 7 o ' c l o c k  a t  t h e  e v e n i n g  a t  t h e  Mutiny, you 

know, I w i l l  g e t  o u t  o f  t h e r e ,  you know, and r i d e  i n  

my car, you know, o r  j u s t  walk around t h e  p lace8  I 

mean, the g a r d e n s ,  you know, and smoke a j o i n t ,  you 



know, which w a s  v e r y  r e l a x i n g ,  you know, and v e r y  

e n j o y f u l ,  w i l l  r e t u r n  t o  t h e  p l a c e ,  you know, w i t h  

h i g h  s p i r i t s ,  

Then, I e i t h e r  w i l l  aak f o r  a b o t t l e o f  

wine ,  o r  you know, a b o t t l e  o f  champagne o r  I w i l l  

s t a r t  d r i n k i n g ,  you know, my Johnny Walker s t r a i g h t  up 

o r  you know, i n  p r e p a r a t i o n  f o r  h a v i n g  a r e g u l a r  meal ,  

which w i l l  amount t o  your  lunch ,  

(r What a b o u t  t h e  c o c a i n e ?  When would you 

s t a r t  t o  u s e  c o c a i n e ?  

A Oh, t h a t  w a s  l a t e r  on,  L a t e r  on,  because ,  

you know- 

Q L a t e r  on i n  wha tever  t h a t  p e r i o d  of  awakenes 

would be ,  l a t e r  on i n  t h e  c y c l e ?  

A T h a t  w i l l  be  c l o s e  t o ,  you know, g e t t i n g  t o  

t h e  p o i n t  of  t h e  o t h e r  s i d e  o f  midn igh t ,  

Q I n  o t h e r  words, a b o u t  ha l fway  t h r o u g h  

t h a t  24-hour p e r i o d ' s  c y c l e  of  b e i n g  awake; is  t h a t  

r i g h t ?  

A Rhght. 

(r What a b o u t  now, Ricky? F o r  t h e  p a s t  month 

o r  s i x  weeks? 

A For  t h e  p a s t  month? 

Q Month o r  s i x  weeks? 

A Month: o f  what y e a r ?  



(r R i g h t  now, For t h e  p a s t  month o r  s i x  

weeks p r e c e d i n g  today?  

A P r e c e d i n g  today?  W e  

A p r i l  t h e  8 t h .  

8 A r e  you a s k i n g  m e  'or  

a r e  i n  1 9 8 2  now, 

t e l l i n g  me? 

A No, I'm just, f o r  t h e  r e c o r d ,  where w e  

are s t a y i n g  now, 

Q The r e c o r d  i s  g o i n g  to show a l l  o f  t h e  

where we a r e  and what we a r e  do ing ,  

MS. COHAM: And what you a r e  s a y i n g ,  

BY MR. WILLIAMS t 

17  

t i m e  

Q When it is  s o ,  you t e l l  me, w i t h i n  t h e  

p a s t  f o u r  t o  s i x  weeks, what has been your r e g u l a r  

r o u t i n e  o r  p r a c t i c e  c o n c e r n i n g  t h e  u s e  of a l l  t h e s e  

v a r i o u s  c h e m i c a l s  t h a t  I have mentioned b e f o r e ?  

A. I h a v e . o n l y  used  a l c o h o l ,  Johnny Walker 

Black ,  

Q During  t h e  p e r i o d  between August of 1980 

and J a n u a r y  o f  1981, how o f t e n  were you u s i n g  Valium 

o r  any o t h e r  g e n e r i c  t h a t  had Diazepin  as its base-- 
- - - - -  - - - - -  - - - - -  - - - - -  - - - - -  - - - -  - - - -  

whatever  you want t o  c a l l  it. 

A Say t h a t  again-about  t h e  head and what? 

MS. COHANI Diazep in ,  

THE WITNESS: But,  you n e v e r  mentioned 

t h e  word head?  
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BY MR, WILLIAMS t 

9. No, I never did, 

A Diazepfn? 

IT Yes, Valium, or any other pharmacologioal 

product that had Diazepin as its base, 

k . Valium, That's it, 

Q With what degree of frequency? 

A That was not a frequenuy that was-maybe, 

you know, one Valium to go to bed, because I suffer 

from nightmares, you know, and really depressed me, 

a What strength Valium, Ricky? 

A Huh? 

0 What strength Valium? They come in two, 

five and ten? 

A Yellows and blue, Yellows are fives, and 

blues are tens, so makes no difference, Either you 

aan have a yellow one, ox split a blue one, That 

means a five, 

Q So, you use on an average of five milligrams 

whenever you used it? 

A Whenever I use it, 

0 Did you have a prescription for the Valium? 

A Of course, 

(r From whom? 

A Oh, I don't recall, Somebody--you know, 



1 9  

I w i l l  a s k ,  you know, t o  g i v e  m e  ~ a l i u r n s ,  

W e l l ,  i f  you a r e  g o i n g  t o  come t o  that 

p o i n t ,  I n e v e r  went t o  a  you know, w i t h  a- 

8 P r e s c r i p t i o n  from t h e  d o c t o r ?  

A With a  p r e s a r i p t i o n  f o r  t h e  Valiuma, you 

know, b u t  i t ' s  l i k e  you n e v e r  go t o  a pharmacy w i t h  

a p r e s c r i p t i o n  f o r  a l c o h o l ,  which i s  a  d rug ,  o r  w i t h  

c o c a i n e ,  which i~ a d r u g ,  The o n l y  d i f f e r e n c e ,  i t ' s  

a c o n t r o l l e d  s u b s t a n c e ,  and Valiume, you c a n  buy them 

o v e r  t h e  c o u n t e r ,  

Q So, you were g e t t i n g  your  Valium8 from 

anybody who might  be a s o u r c e  of  it f o r  you, however 

t h e y  would coma by3 i a  t h a t  c o r r e c t ?  

A I t ' s  no b i g  d e a l  a b o u t  t h a t ,  You c a n  go 

a round ,  You know, you have Valium, and t h a t ' s  it. 

04 I ' m  n o t  making a v a l u e  judgment, Ricky, 

I am j u s t  t r y i n g  t o  get some i n f o r m a t i o n  from you, 

I ' m  j u s t  t r y i n g  t o  f i n d  o u t  who you go a b o u t  g e t t i n g  

y o u r  Valium, 

I f  n o t  from p r e s c r i p t i o n ,  were you g e t t i n g  

it from somebody else whom you t h o u g h t  t o  have ,  

however t h e y  g o t  it, and make them a v a i l a b l e  t o  you; 

i s  t h a t  what it was? 

A Y e s ,  

0 Have you been u s i n g  Valium i n  t h e  p a s t  f o u r  



t o  s i x  weeks? 

A Oh, l e t  m e  see, Yea, 

(r With what degree  o f  f requency? 

A Every t i m e  t h a t  I cou ld  f e e l  t h a t  I a m  

go ing  t o  be restless, you know, o r  hyper t h a t  n i g h t .  

@ . Where t h e s e  days  are you g e t t i n g  your 

Valium from? 

A The p r e s c r i p t i o n ,  

(r Do you have a p h y s i c i a n ' s  p r e s o r i p t i o n  f o r  

Valium? 

k No, I d o n ' t ,  

9 Where a r e  you g e t t i n g  them from? 

MS. COHAN: You can l e a v e  t h e  room f o r  a 

f sw minutes.  

MR. WILLIAMS: L e t  t h e  r e c o r d  r e f l e c t  the 

w i t n e s s  has ,  for t h e  p r e s a n t ,  d e c l i n e d  t o  

answer t h e  q u e s t i o n ,  and has  l e f t  t h e  room, 

(The w i t n e s s  l e f t  t h e  room,) 

MS. COHANt Can you read back t h e  l a s t  

coup le  o f  q u e s t i o n s  and answers,  p l e a s e ?  

MR. WILLIAMS Rina, t h e  q u e s t i o n  was 

where he w a s  g e t t i n g  h i s  Valium, 

M S .  COHAN: M r ,  Wil l iams,  I want t o  h e a r  

it from Joyce; n o t  from you. 

MR. WILLXAMSr Well, I d o n ' t  much c a r e ,  
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The q u e s t i o n  is, where i a  he g e t t i n g  h i s  

Valium from now? T h a t ' s  what it i s ,  

M S ,  COHAN: May I p l e a s e  h e a r  t h e  

q u e s t i o n  and answer from t h e  w i t n e s s ?  

MR, WILLIAMS: T h a t ' s  much b e t t e r ,  

. (Whereupon, t h e  q u e ~ t i o n s  and answers 

r e f e r r e d  t o  were r e a d  i n t o  t h e  r e c o r d  by t h e  c o u r t  

r e p o r t e r ,  ) 

(The w i t n e s s  e n t e r e d  t h e  room,) 

THE WITNESSt M r ,  ~ i l l i a m s - -  

MR, WILLIAMS: Wait u n t i l  t h e  p r o s e c u t o r  

comes back, 

THE WITNESSt Y e s ,  

M S ,  COHAN: L e t  me, once aga in ,  a d v i s e  you, 

Ricardo,  t h a t  you have t h e  r i g h t  t o  a a a e r t  t h e  

F i f t h  Amendment any t i m e  you ao d e s i r e ,  

HR, WILLIAMS: r W i l l i a m s ,  I went t o  t h e  

h o s p i t a l  t o  v i e i t  a c l o s e  r e l a t i v e ,  and I 

bumped i n t o  some o t h e r  r e l a t i v e s  t h e r e ,  and I 

asked them do t h e y  have any Valiums, and somehow, 

my c l o s e  r e l a t i v e ,  you know, produced, you knuw, 

f o u r  o r  f i v e  o f  them, and t h o s e  are t h e  ones  t h a t  

I have used i n  t h e  t i m e  t h a t  you have mentioned 

it, 

That  happened i n  t h e  p a s t  f o u r  months. 



2 2  

BY MR, WILLIAMS t 

F Have you been g e t t i n g  Valium o r  any o t h e r  

subs t ance  t h a t  you've been u s i n g  from any person  

a s i d e  from t h e  r e l a t i v e  you have j u s t  d e s c r i b e d  whom 

you encounte red  a t  the h o s p i t a l ?  

A ' J u s t  a l c o h o l ,  

9 No, Here's my q u e s t i o n  t o  you- 

A What do you mean no? Alcohol  is  a drug. 

QI You misunderstood my q u e s t i o n ,  

You t o l d  m e  a minute ago t h a t  you bumped 

i n t o  a r e l a t i v e  a t  a h o s p i t a l  a t  some p o i n t  i n  t h e  

p a s t  and g o t  some V a l i u m  from t h a t  r e l a t i v e ,  and t h a t  

i s  what you have been us ing  over  t h e  p a s t ?  

A. That  i s  what I had a l r e a d y  used,  

e Okay , 

A Ueed, p a s t  t ense .  

Qi How much Valium d i d  you g e t  from t h a t  

r e l a t i v e ?  

A I a l r e a d y  answered t o  t h a t  q u e s t i o n ,  

M S ,  COHAN: Objec t ion ,  R e p e t i t i o u s ,  

BY MR. WILLIAMS : 

Qi Once you used t h o s e  few p i l l s ,  d i d  you t h e n  

a c q u i r e  Valium from any o t h e r  sou rce?  

A Nope. 

9. Is it your t es t imony ,  then, t h a t  a p a r t  from 



t h e  few p i l l s  t h a t  you were g iven  by your d i s t a n t  

r e l a t i v e  i n  t h e  h o s p i t a l -  

A. I never  s a i d  d i s t a n t  r e l a t i v e .  

(r Your r e l a t i v e  i n  t h e  h o s p i t a l ,  t h a t  you have 

n o t  r e c e i v e d  o r  been g iven  o r  a c q u i r e d  Valium8 from 

any o t h e r  source?  

A. That  i s  r i g h t ,  

(r When, most r e c e n t l y ,  have you used Valium? 

A Three months ago, two months ago. 

Q Were you aware, d u r i n g  t h e  t i m e  t h a t  YOU 

were r e g u l a r l y  u s i n g  coca ine  and mar i juana ,  t h a t  

it was a  v i o l a t i o n  o f  t h e  laws o f  t h e  s t a t e  of F l o r i d a  

t o  pos sees  t h o s e  c o n t r o l l e d  subs t ances?  

A Y e s .  

8 A r e  you aware t h a t  it i s  a v i o l a t i o n  of 

t h e  laws of  t h e  s t a t e  o f  F l o r i d a  t o  be i n  posseenion 

of a  pharmaceu t ica l  p roduc t  t h a t  is diapenaed by 

p r e s c r i p t i o n  o n l y  i f  one does  n o t  have a p r e s c r i p t i o n  

for i t ?  

A 1tgs obvious ,  

0. Between t h e  t i m e  your  d e p o s i t i o n  s t a r t e d  

t h i s  morning and t h e  t i m e  w e  r e c e s s e d  y e s t e r d a y  

a f t e r n o o n ,  have you d i s c u s s e d  any of  t h e  t es t imony  

t h a t  you have g iven  o r  any of  t h e  questions t h a t  have 



A No. 

F With anybody? 

A No. 

a nave you been i n  t o u c h  w i t h  L i e u t e n a n t  

Diaz o v e r  t h e  past 18 h o u r s ?  

A . No. 

0 Have you, a t  any t i m e  s i n c e  t h i s  d e p o s i t i o n  

s t a r t e d ,  which i s  t o  s a y ,  on F r i d a y ,  ~ p r i l  2nd, 

had any c o n v e r s a t i o n  w i t h  any t h i r d  p e r s o n s  a b o u t  

any  o f  t h e  d e f e n d a n t s - i n  t h i s  case? When I s a y  

" t h i r d  p e r s o n s , "  I mean, anybody w i t h  whom you have  

had p e r s o n a l  c o n t a c t ,  whether  it w a s  c o n t a c t  t h a t  you 

g e n e r a t e d  o r  somebody e l s e  g e n e r a t e d ?  

Have you had any  d i s c u s s i o n  a b o u t  any  o f  t h e  

d e f e n d a n t s  i n  t h i s  case w i t h  any t h i r d  p e r s o n ?  

h I'm n o t  i n  t h e  p r a c t i c e  t o  d i s c u s s  t h e s e  

p r o c e e d i n g s  w i t h  any t h i r d  parties b e c a u s e  X a m  w e l l  

aware t h a t  t h o s e  a r e  one  of t h e  q u e s t i o n s  t h a t  w i l l  

be p u t  up t o  m e ,  s o  t h e  answer i s  no. 

Q S p e u i f i c a l l y ,  have you had any c o n v e r s a t i o n s  

o r  d i s c u s s i o n s  w i t h  anybody t h a t  p e r t a i n e d  i n  one  way 

o r  a n o t h e r  t o  M r .  Quesada ,  M r .  A r i a s ,  M r .  C a s t r o ,  

M r .  V i l l a v e r d e ?  

Have you d i s c u s s e d  any o f  t h o s e  people w i t h  

anybody s i n c e  t h e  b e g i n n i n g  o f  your  d e p o s i t i o n ?  
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A The answer i s  no, Douglas, 

0 Do you want any t i m e  t o  t h i n k  abou t  t h a t ,  

Riaky? 

A T h e  answer i s  no, Douglas, For  C h r i s t  

s akes ,  

M S ,  COHANa For t h e  r e c o r d ,  I t a k e  your  

t h i r d  pe r son ' s  t e r m  t o  mean pe r sons  n o t  invo lved  

i n  t h e  i n s t a n t  l i t i g a t i o n ?  

MR, WILLIAMSa Tha t  is  c o r r e c t .  

THE WITNESSa Oh, I bumped i n t o  t h i s  guy 

from t h e  Miami Herald  t h e  o t h e r  day t h a t  w e  

were a t  t h e  1800, Guil lermo Mar t inez ,  and I 

s a i d ,  nI cannot  t a l k  t o  you abou t  any th ing ,  

you know, because ,  you known-- 

BY MR. WILL1 A M  a 

Q You were t e l l i n g  u s  yes t e rday?  

A I would l i k e  t o  be adv i sed  by you o r  by 

somebody i f 8  you know, s i n a e  t h i s  i s  a f r e e  c o u n t r y  

and freedom o f  speeah,  you know, i s  p r o t e c t e d  by t h e  

C o n s t i t u t i o n ,  you know, i t ' s  l i k e  I have a gag i n  

my mou%h t h a t  I canno t  even--you know, i t ' a  come t o  

t h e  p o i n t  where I d o n ' t  even t a l k  t o  myself ,  1 j u s t  

want t o  know i f  somebody qan r e f e r  t o  t h a t  beaause ,  

o the rwi se ,  I am go ing  t o  s t o p  everybody i n  t h e  street1 

you know, and t e l l  them, you know, "1 am on depos i t iox  



and t h e y  a r e  a s k i n g  m e  q u e s t i o n s  which a r e  a  matter of  

p u b l i c  r e c o r d  f o r  t h e  f u t u r e  and now, anybody aan get 

ahold  of  them," and t h i n g s  l i k e  t h a t ,  

You know, I just wanted t o  be adv ised ,  you 

know, i f  I c a n 2 . t a l k  t o  somebody o r  I have t o  be, 

you know, gagged o r  i n t i m i d a t e d  a l l  t h e  t i m e ,  you know 

and going t o  bed t h i n k i n g  who I t a l k e d  t o  today,  what 

w a s  my uonversat;Sons becauars, you know, i t ' s  g e t t i n g  

t o  be r i d i c u l o u s .  

I want an answer from somebody t o  that ,  o r  

if I need an a t t o r n s y  t o  be, you know, p r e s e n t  with 

me, you know, t o  a d v i s e  m e  of m y  r i g h t s  about ,  you 

know, i f  I can  open my mouth, o r  I have t o  g e t  my 

mouth ahu t  a l l  the t i m e s  r i g h t ?  

Q Do you p r e s e n t l y  have p r i v a t e  oounse l ,  

Mr, Moxales? 

A. I can h i r e  p r i v a t e  counee l  any t i m e  t h a t  

I want. 

Q ~ a r d s  my q u e s t i o n  now, do you p r e s e n t l y  

have p r i v a t e  counse l3  

& Mo. 

0 Didn ' t  you c o n s u l t  w i t h  At to rney  John 

Komorowaki s h o r t l y  before t h e  commenaement o f  Chis  

d e p o s i t i o n  l a a t  Fr iday?  

k I saw John  omo or ow ski, and whatever eonversc 

t i o n  I had w i t h  John- 
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0. I am.no t  a sk ing  you about  t h e  c o n v e r s a t i o n ,  

A L i s t e n .  Whatever c o n v e r s a t i o n  I had w i t h  

John Xomorowski i s  p r i v a t e  t o  John Komorowski and 

mysel f ,  and you know t h a t .  

8 I t  c e r t a i n l y  is ,  and I wasn ' t  about  t o  ask 

you what you d i s c u s s e d  w i th  your lawyer.  

A What lawyer? 

M S ,  COHAN: Objec t ion  t o  t h e  assumption 

t h a t  M r .  Kamorowski is M r .  ~ o r a l e s '  a t t o r n e y ,  

BY MR. WILLIPMSt 

gC When you had c o n v e r s a t i o n s  w i th  M r ,  Komor- 

owski,  M r ,  Morales,  b e f o r e  t h e  commencement o f  t h i s  

d e p o s i t i o n ,  t h e  c o n v e r s a t i o n s  t h a t  you had w i t h  him 

a r e  p r i v i l e g e d  i f  you were t a l k i n g  t o  him a8  your  

lawyer. I f  you were n o t  t a l k i n g  t o  him as  your 

lawyer ,  t h e n ,  t h e  conve r sa t i on  i s n ' t  p r i v i l e g e d ,  

So, were you t a l k i n g  t o  M r .  Xomorowski r e g a r d i n g  him 

as your lawyer? 

A Nope, 

Q W e l l ,  t h en ,  why d o n ' t  you t e l l  u s  o f  t h e  

c o n v e r s a t i o n s  you had? 

A How h i s  k i d  was doing,  you know,.when he  

was l e a v i n g  F l o r i d a ,  you look good, you know, you 

are  i n  good h e a l t h ,  how o l d  Pau l  i s  going on, and 

t h i n g s  like t h a t ,  
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(r Then, what you a r e  t e l l i n g  m e  i s  t h a t  

you d i d  n o t  c o n s u l t  M r ,   omo or ow ski f o r  t h e  purpose  

o f  o b t a i n i n g  h i s  l e g a l  a d v i c e s  o r  a s s i s t a n c e  i n  

p r e p a r a t i o n  f o r  e i t h e r  your  d e p o s i t i o n ,  t e s t i m o n y  on 

d e p o s i t i o n ,  o r  any o t h e r  f a c e t  o f  t h i s  case; i s  t h a t  

correct? 

A No, Wil l iams.  

0 Not a o r r e a t ?  

A No, Wil l iams,  X t  i s  c o r r e c t .  

(r Z t  i s  c o r r e o t ?  Okay. 

W e l l ,  i n  r e sponse  t o  your  q u e s t i o n ,  

M r .  Morales ,  L w i l l  tell you t h e s e  t h i n g s :  No, 1, 

it i s  n o t  m y  f u n a t i o n  t o  g i v e  you legal  a d v i c e ,  and 

i f  o t h e r w i s e  your  q u e s t i o n  t o  m e  was tantamount  t o  

a s k i n g  m e  f a r  l e g a l  a d v i c e ,  w i t h  a l l  due  r e s p e c t  t o  

you I d e c l i n e  t o  g i v e  it t o  you. 

No, 2 ,  you c e r t a i n l y  have t h e  r i g h t  t o  

c o n s u l t  counae l  of your  own choos ing  a t  any t i m e  

you want ,  as you w e l l  know, by v i r t u e  o f  your  

f a m i l i a r i t y  w i t h  t h e  l e g a l  sys tem o v e r  t h e  p a s t  28  

y e a r s ,  

If you t h i n k  you need t o  c o n s u l t  w i t h  an 

a t t o r n e y  a t  any t i m e  d u r i n g  t h e  c o u r s e  o f  t h i s  

d e p o s i t i o n ,  because some p e r s o n a l  l e g a l  r i g h t  t h a t  

you p o s s e a s  i s  i n  some way j eopa rd i zed  o r  t h r e a t e n e d  
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by t h e  procedure  t h a t  i s  t a k i n g  p l a c e ,  t h e  q u e s t i o n s  

t h a t  a r e  be ing  asked of you, you t e l l  m e  t h a t ,  and 

w e  w i l l  t a k e  a recess f o r  as l ong  as you t h i n k  it 

n e c e s s a r y  i n  o r d e r  t o  l e t  you have a c c e s s  t o  c o u n s e l  

of  your cho ice ,  

A I b e l i e v e  t h a t  s i n c e  t h e  S t a t e  is  r ep re -  

s e n t e d  h e r e  i n  t h e  person  of  Ms, Rina Cohan, and 

s i n c e  you are t h e  one who, you know, is--1% being ,  f e  

you know, l i k e  p u t t i n g  a gag overo-you know somebody-- 

I would l i k e  somebody to have an e x p l a n a t i o n  t o  why, 

you know, is t h e  matter t h a t  I f e e l  t h a t  I canno t  even 

t a l k  t o  myself i n  t h e  m i r r o r ?  

(r Before  I was i n t e r r u p t e d ,  I waa going t o  

c o n t i n u e  by way o f  s a y i n g  t h a t  though M s ,  Cohan, 

as  p r o e e c u t i n g  a t t o r n e y  f o r  t h e  S t a t e  o f  F lo r ida -  

A Can I be provided w i t h  a hook which might  

be around h e r s ,  you know, t o  inforin myself abou t  t h e  

r u l e s  and r e g u l a t i o n s ,  t h e  do8 and d o n ' t s  o f ,  you know 

d e p o s i t i o n ,  and t h i n g s  l i k e  t h a t ,  because  t h i s  i s  t h e  

f i r a t  t i m e  t h a t  I have been i n  a d e p o s i t i o n ,  and you 

know t h a t ,  

Q. L e t  m e  g i v e  you a  do, The do is  s i t  down 

and anawer q u e s t i o n s  u n l e s s  you t h i n k  t h a t  your l e g a l  

r i g h t s  are be ing  i n f r i n g e d  upon, i n  which e v e n t ,  you 

can t a l k  t o  a lawyer,  
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The d o n ' t  is ,  d o n ' t  make demands on me, o r  

f o r  t h a t  m a t t e r ,  t h e  p rosecu to r  o r  anybody e l s e  what 

you want t o  have done o r  n o t  have done d u r i n g  t h e  

cou r se  of t h e  d e p o s i t i o n ,  

I an going t o  con t inua  t o  ask  q u e s t i o n s  

u n l e s s  you want t o  g e t  up and walk o u t  t o  go t o  

t a l k  t o  a  lawyer,  

B M r .  Wil l iams,  as soon as I f e e l  t h a t  you 

are v i o l a t i n g  my c i v i l  r i g h t s  w i th  t h a t  c r a p  about ,  

you know, n o t  t a l k i n g  t o  anybody o r  t h a t  k ind  of 

t h i n g ,  t h a t  i f  I f e e l  t h a t  I am be ing  i n t i m i d a t e d  

by you, I ' m  going t o  make a complaint  wi th  t h e  

C i v i l  Righ ts  D iv i s ion  of t h e  U.S. At to rney ' s  Off ice .  

That  is  f i r s t ;  okay? 

Now, you can con t inue  wi th  your s e s s i o n  

today,  

0 Does Ricardo Morales Nava re t t e  p r e s e n t l y  

feel  i n t i m i d a t e d  by me? 

A Yes, X do, 

@ Did you f e e l  i n t i m i d a t e d  i n  t h e  Belgian 

Congo, Ricky? 

M S .  COBAN: Object ion.  Argumentative. 

MR, WILLIAMS8 No, a b s o l u t e l y ,  I want t o  

know your frame of  mind when you were do ing  

war maneuvers i n  t h e  Belgian Congo, 



Did you f e e l  i n t i m a t e d  by t h e  p r e s e n c e  of 

guns o r  bombs? 

THE WITNESSt I was s c a r e d  t o  d e a t h .  

BY MR. WILLIAMS: 

Qi A r e  you s c a r e d  t o  d e a t h  now? 

A. I f e e l  i n t i m i d a t e d ,  

0, BY? 

A You, 

MR. WILLIAMS: The r e c o r d  s h o u l d  r e f l e c t  

t h a t  t h e  w i t n e s s  p o i n t e d  a t  ma, 

MS. COHANs Do you f e e l  t h r e a t e n e d ,  

Mr. Wil l i ams?  

MR, WILLIAMS: I have  n e v e r  f e l t  less 

t h r e a t e n e d  i n  my e n t i r e  l i f e .  

THE WITNESS: S h a l l  w e  c o n t i n u e ?  

BY MR. WILLIAMS r 

Qi Would you l i k e  p r e s e n t l y  t o  recess t h e  

d e p o s i t i o n ,  so that you c a n  have  t h e  b e n e f i t  o f  

c o n f e r r i n g  w i t h  c o u n s e l  of your  c h o i c e ?  

A Not now, 

S h a l l  w e  c o n t i n u e ?  

(r I t h o u g h t  you'd n e v e r  ask, 

When you were- 

A. f ahould  n e v e r  ask what? 

0 When you were-- 



Never a s k  what? 

Ricky, I s a i d ,  I t h o u g h t  you would n e v e r  aak  

Don' t  wh iaper ,  Louder,  

I t h o u g h t  you would n e v e r  a a k ,  

To what? 

I f  w e  c o u l d  b e g i n ,  

Then f i n i s h ,  

1 was w a i t i n g  f o r  you, 

L e t ' s  go on, 

Now, when you w e r e  u s i n g  c o n t r o l l e d  sub- 

s t a n c e s  t h a t  you d e s c r i b e d  between August and 

J a n u a r y  o f  1980 t o  1981,  t h e  c o c a i n e  and t h e  mar i juana  

and t h e  Valium, where were you g e t t i n g  them? 

A I n e v e r  said t h a t  I used  c o c a i n e  i n  J a n u a r y  

o f  1981, 

Q Whenever it waa d u r i n g  t h a t  p e r i o d  o f  t i m e  

between August of 1980 and J a n u a r y  o f  1981, i n c l u s i v e ,  

t h a t  you were u s i n g  c o c a i n e ,  m a r i j u a n a ,  and Valium, 

whenever t h a t  was, from where were you g e t t i n g  t h e  

c o c a i n e ?  

A Douglas,  c o c a i n e ,  i n  t h o s e  t i m e s ,  waa 

a v a i l a b l e ,  you know, o v e r  t h e  c o u n t e r  anyplace-  

t h e  Mutiny, any peop le  t h a t  I bump i n t o .  

You have t o  r e a l i z e  t h a t  I was moving i n  

a d r u g  c i rc le ,  t h a t  I was i n v o l v e d  i n  t h e  d e a l i n g  o f  



coca ine ,  and it was t h e r e ,  

I d i d n ' t  have t o  ask t o  anybody, you know, 

s p e c i f i c a l l y ,  because it was t h e r e ,  

9r Did you g e t  t h e  coca ine  from M r .  Queaada? 

A YSS, 

Q . Did you get coca ine  from M r .  A r i a s?  

R Yes, 

Oc Did you g e t  coca ine  from M r ,  Marcos? 

A I never  met M r .  Marcos i n  m y  life. 

(rc Did you g e t  coca ine  from M r ,  Ortega? 

A Y e s .  

(r Did you get cocaine from e i t h e r  of t h e  

b r o t h e r s  V i l l a v e r d e ?  

A, From Raul, 

Q. The gentleman s e a t e d  t o  my l e f t  now 

( i n d i  e a t i n g )  3 

A. Y e s .  

QI What about  Rafael?  

A Rafael never used any coca ine  i n  my pre- 

any from him? 

A Rafael never ever provided me wi th  any 

coca ine ,  

0 D i d  you o b t a i n  coca ine  from any of t h e  othez 
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persona who a r e  o r  i n  t h e  p a s t  have been d e f e n d a n t s  

i n  ' t h i s  c a s e ?  

A L e t  m e  go th rough  t h e  l i s t ,  

MR. WILLIAMS: Do you have a cove r  s h e e t  o f  

t h e  In format ion ,  c u r r e n t l y ,  ~ i n a ?  

MS. COHAN: Y e s ,  i t ' s  n o t  i n c l u s i v e  of  a l l  

the  de fendan t s ,  b u t  a t  l eas t  i t ' s  p a r t i a l  

(handing t o  t h e  w i t n e s s ) ,  

THE WITNESS: ( A f t e r  examining doaument),  

Lucy Garc ia ,  Ramon Puentes ,  J o s e  A, Fernandex, 

a l s o  known a s  Tony Mentir i ta--I 'm t a l k i n g  i n  t h e  

s e n s e  o f  u s i n g  it, t h e  coca ine ,  t h a t  w e  have 

used coca ine  t o g e t h e r ,  

BY MR. WILLIAMS: 

Q Y e s ,  t h a t  i s  what I want t o  know, 

A. The ones  t h a t  I have used coca ine  t oge the r8  

r i g h t ?  

8 From whom you g o t  coca ine?  

A Oh, I gave coca ine  t o  them, and t h e y  gave me 

c o c a i n e ,  t o o ,  

0 A r e  w e  always t a l k i n g  about  amounts o r  

q u a n t i t i e s  f o r  p e r s o n a l  use? 

A. No, I a m  t a l k i n g - r i g h t  now, I a m  t a l k i n g  

about  amounts of q u a n t i t i e s  t o  be used,  

(r P e r s o n a l  use?  



A Personal  use,  t h a t  i s  r i g h t .  

(r Y e s .  

A From t h e  l ist  he re  t h a t  has been provided 

t o  me. 

MR. WILLIAMS: The record  should r e f l e c t  

t h a t  t h e  wi tness  i s  r e f e r r i n g  t o  t h e  coves  s h e e t  

of t h e  informat ion p r e s e n t l y  pending i n  t h i a  

caae. 

THE WITNESS: I have personal  use of coca ine  

s h a r i n g  cocaine,  w e  have s n o r t  coca ine  t o g e t h e r  

wi th  Car los  Quesada, Roberto Ortega,  Alfred0 

Ar ias ,  Luoy Gascia-I n e v e r ' s n e s t  any coca ine  

wi th ,  b u t  I s n o r t  cocaine i n  h e r  preaencq, and 

she  o f f e r e d  me, you know, l i t t l e  p r e s e n t s  l i k e  

b e a u t i f u l  rocka-you know, t h i n g s  l i k e  t h a t ,  

BY MR. WfLLXAMSt 

8. B e a u t i f u l  socks? 

A. B e a u t i f u l  rocks  of cocaine.  You know, 

the sh iny  ones ,  t h e  good sh iny  onea--beautiful  rocks. 

(li What do you mean "shinyg o r  agood onesa? 

A A rock, a p i e c e  of t h e  rock. 

8. A rock of cocaine? 

A. A rock of  cocaine.  

e Okay. 

k A p i e c e  of a rock, 



Q What I want t o  know- 

k You were whisper ing  something t o  h e r ,  

A Y e s ,  I was, 

8 Is it p a r t  of  t h e  r eco rd?  

A No 0 

!J Whispering i s  n o t  p a r t  o f  t h e  r e c o r d ,  

a Go ahead,  G o  on,  

A J o s e  A,  Fernandez, a l s o  known a s  

Tony M e n t i r i t a ,  I have used coca ine  i n  t h e  p reaence  

o f  R a f a e l  V i l l a v e r d e ,  b u t  R a f a e l  V i l l a v e r d e  neve r  used 

any coca ine  i n  my presence ,  

(OM t h e  r e c o r d , )  

THE WITNESSt I have used c o c a i n e  i n  t h e  

p re sence  o f  Frank Cast ro .  1 have used c o c a i n e  
L 

i n  t h e  p re sence  o f  P o r f i r i o  Bonet, a l s o  known 

as Mike, and I have used coca ine  w i t h  M r .  

Raul V i l l a v e r d e ,  

BY MR. WILLIAMS8 

8 You t o l d  m e  a wh i l e  ago t h a t  you o b t a i n e d  

coca ine  from Raul V i l l a v e r d e ?  

A Yes-I'm t a l k i n g  about  u s ing  c o c a i n e  

t o g e t h e r ,  W e  ag reed  t h a t  now I a m  going i n t o  who I 

have used coca ine  s o c i a U y  l i k e  a l c o h o l ,  

(r No, w e  r e a l l y  d i d n ' t  ag ree ,  b u t  I d i d  . 

ask  you a q u e s t i o n  about  t h a t ,  

A Okay. Then, l e t ' s  go aga in ,  
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Q From whom you g o t  c o c a i n e  d u r i n g  t h e  p e r i o d  

between August  1980 and January  o f  1981, i n c l u s i v e ,  

f o r  y o u r  p e r s o n a l  u s e ?  T h a t ' s  t h e  ques t ion-- f rom 

whom you o b t a i n e d  i t ?  

MS. COHAN t O b j e c t i o n  t o  t h e  q u e s t i o n  as 

p h r a s e d ,  

He's i n d i c a t e d  d u r i n g  J a n u a r y  o f  1981 ,  

h e  d i d  n o t  u s e  c o c a i n e ,  

BY MR. WILLIAMS : 

Q Go ahead and answer t h e  q u e s t i o n ,  Mr. Morale 

A Okay, C a r l o s  Quesada ,  Rober to  O r t e g a ,  

A l f r e d o  A r i a s ,  Lucy G a r c i a ,  Ramon P u e n t e s ,  

With r e g a r d  t o  J o s e  A, Bernandea, 

Tony H e n t i r i t a ,  I g o t  c o c a i n e  from him n o t  d u r i n g  t h a t  

p e r i o d  of t i m e ,  

0 E a r l i e r ,  I assume? 

A Yea, 

( C o n t i n u i n g )  -- Raul V i l l a v e r d e .  

T h a t ' s  a b o u t  it, 

(r You were t e l l i n g  me y e s t e r d a y  a b o u t  t h e  

c i r cu rna tancee  under  which you met Rau1 Diaz,  t h e  one  

who i s  now a p o l i c e  l i e u t e n a n t  w i t h  t h e  Metro Dade 

P o l i c e  Department ,  and you had t o l d  m e  t h a t  you met 

L i e u t e n a n t  Diaz i n  1972 i n  t h e  p r e s e n c e  o f  Vince O l l e x  

i n  t h e  c a f e t e r i a  i n  t h e  P u b l i c  S a f e t y  Department? 
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A I n  t h e  p resence  o f  Se rgean t  O l l e r ,  

# What i s  t h e  f i r s t  t i m e  a f t e r  t h a t ,  t h a t  

you had any a c t u a l  d i r e c t  c o n t a c t  w i t h  ~ i e u t e n a n t  

Dias of any s o r t ?  

A I a l r e a d y  answered t o  t h a t  q u e s t i o n ,  

L e t  t h e  r e c o r d  r e f l e c t e d  it, 

Q W e l l ,  answer it a g a i n  f o r  me, 

M S ,  COHANt J u s t  a  minute,  

No o b j e c t i o n .  Go ahead and answer it, 

BY MR. WILLIAMS: 

Q The anewer i s ?  

A The answer is t h a t  I a l r e a d y  answered t o  

t h a t  q u e s t i o n ,  

fh W e l l ,  t r y  aga in ,  H r ,  Morales,  and t e l l  me 

when you f i r s t  had c o n t a c t  w i t h  L i e u t e n a n t  Diaz a f t e r  

be ing  i n t roduced  t o  him by Vince O l l e r ?  

A. Why d o n ' t  you go t o  t h e  r e c o r d ?  

Qi I n  t h e  P u b l i c  S a f e t y  Depaxbaent Bui ld ing  
J 

i n  t h e  c a f e t e r i a  

A Why d o n ' t  you go through t h e  r e c o r d ?  I t ' s  
- - - -  - - - -  - - - - -  - - - - - - - - - - - - -  

i n  t h e  r eco rd ,  I a l r e a d y  answered t o  t h a t  q u e s t i o n ,  

0. A l l  r i g h t ,  M r ,  Moralea. Answer t h a t  

q u e s t i o n  now, 

A I tm s r e p e t i t i o u s ,  

Q. You be  t h e  wi tness .  W e  w i l l  be t h e  lawyers.  
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Okay? 

A I am t h e  d e f e n d a n t ,  and you a r e  t h e  judge,  

o r  you a r e  t h e  lawyer  and I a m  t h e  w i t n e s s ?  

(E. Y o u w r e  t h e  w i t n e s s ,  

A Okay. 

M S .  COHANt M r ,  Morales ,  I d o n w t  have it 

i n  my n o t e s ,  Would you be  so k ind  as t o  answer 

it, p l e a s e ?  

THE WITNESS: Two weeks a f t e r w a r d s .  

BY MR. WILLIAMS: 

Q How d i d  t h e  c o n t a c t  come a b o u t ?  

A. When I was c u i n g  him in to- - I  a l r e a d y  

answered e x t e n s i v e l y  t o  t h a t  q u e s t i o n ,  

Q M r ,  Moralea,  answer t h e  q u e s t i o n ,  p l e a s e ,  

a i r ,  

MS. COHANt Was h e  p a r t  o f  t h e  bomb 

c l a s s ?  

THE WITNESS: No, t h a t  was b e f o r e ,  Tha t  

was when I took  M r . - - I  mean, O f f i c e r  Diaz,  you 

know, and showed h i m  t h e  s treets  o f  Miami, f o r  

C h r i s t  s a k e s ,  e x t e n s i v e l y ,  

MS. COHANs You d i d  answer,  

THE WITNESS: I d i d  answer t h a t  e x t e n s i v e l y .  

BY MR. WILL1 AMS I 

8 Did you, t h e r e a f t e r ,  h a v e . a n y  a d d i t i o n a l  
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c o n t a c t  w i th  Raul Diaz p r i o r  t o  t h e  t i m e  t h a t  he l e f t  

uniform and became a p l a i n c l o t h e s  i n v e s t i g a t o r  b u t  

s p e c i f i c a l l y  was connected w i t h  t h e  'performance of  h i s  

p o l i c e  d u t i e a ?  

A I a l r e a d y  answered t h a t  I never  m e t  Raul 

Diaz  b e f o r e ,  b e f o r e  t h a t  day a t  t h e  c a f e t e r i a  a t  t h e  

PSD, 

8 Yea, I know, You weren ' t  l i s t e n i n g .  

A I a l r e a d y  answered t h e  q u e s t i o n ,  

(r You weren ' t  l i s t e n i n g  t o  t h e  q u e s t i o n ,  

T r y  and s t a y  wi th  us ,  I f  t h e  q u e s t i o n  i s  t o o  d i f f i -  

c u l t  f o r  you, t e l l  me. 
4 

MS.  COHANt Object ion.  ~ r g u m e n t a t i v s ,  

BY HR, WILLIAMS: 

8 The ques t ion ,  M r ,  Morales,  might  h e l p  you 

o u t  if you want t o  read  my l i p n ?  

A I ' m  not a  l i p r e a d e r .  

MS, COHAN: Argumentative. 

BY MR. WILLIAMS: 

- - - 

8 When, a f t e r  you took Raul Diaz on t h i s  
- - - - - - - - - - - - -  - - - -  - - - -  - - - - -  - - 

o r i e n t a t i o n  r ide through t h e  s t r e e t s  of downtown Miami 

d i d  you n e x t  have any c o n t a c t  w i th  him, i f  a t  a l l ,  

p r i o r  t o  t h e  t i m e  t h a t  he went i n t o  p l a i n c l o t h e e ?  

A, I do n o t  unders tand your  ques t ion .  

Rephrase i t ,  Make it more easy  f o r  m e  t o  



answer t r u t h f u l l y ,  

()i Yee, of  cou r se ,  B y  a l l  means, 

The q u e a t i o n  is ,  d i d  t h e r e  come a t i m e  

a f t e r  you took  Raul Diaz on t h e  o r i e n t a t i o n  r i d e  

you d e s c r i b e d  t o  us-- 

A ' H e  was a p la inc lo thesman  by t h a t  t i m e ,  

0 That  i s  t o  s ay ,  t hen ,  t h a t  he  had gone 

i n t o  a p l a i n c l o t h e s  ass ignment  between t h e  day you 

f i r s t  m a t  him i n  t h e  P u b l i c  S a f e t y  Department c a f e t e r i  

and t h e  t i m e  t h a t  you took  him on t h e  r i d e ?  

A Tha t  i s  c o r r e c t .  

(r Did t h e r e  aonm a t i m e  when a r e l a t i o n s h i p  

between you and Rau l .D iaz  developed i n  which you ware 

an  in formant  f o r  him, and he was, i n  e f f e c t ,  a law 

enforcement  sponsor  o r  i n fo rman t ' s  c o n t r o l  f o r  you? 

A Say t h a t  aga in?  

MR. WILLIAMS: Read t h e  q u e s t i o n  back t o  

t h e  w i t n e s s ,  would you, p l e a s e ?  

(Whereupon, t h e  q u e s t i o n  r e f e r r e d  t o  w a s  

r e a d  i n t o  t h e  r e c o r d  by t h e  c o u r t  r e p o r t e r . )  

THE WITNESS8 R e  w a s  neve r  a c o n t r o l  agent 

f o r  me, I was a sou rce  f o r  him, 

I f  he  c a t e g o r i z e d  m e  a s  an  i n fo rman t  t h a t ,  

I d o n ' t  know, b u t  d e f i n i t e l y ,  I was a s o u r c e  

f o r  him, 
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BY MR, WILLIAMS : 

QC When d i d  you beg in  p rov id ing  o f f i c e r  Raul 

Diaz w i t h  i n fo rma t ion ,  M r .  Morales? 

A The f i r s t  day t h a t  I took him o u t  on t h a t  

r i d e ,  

(r D i d  t h e r e  e v e r  come a t i m e  when you and 

Raul Diaz began t o  spend t i m e  t o g e t h e r  s o c i a l l y ?  

A Yes, 

Q When w a s  t h a t ?  

A S t a r t i n g  i n  1972 .  

(r A t  t h a t  p o i n t  i n  t i m e ,  had you a l r e a d y  had 

o r  become invo lved  i n  t h e  acqua in t ancesh ip  t h a t  you 

d e s o r i b e d  t o  u s  a coup le  o f  days  ago wi th  Nancy 

Lamaaares? 

11 I c a n ' t  h e a r  you. 

fA Had you a l r e a d y  had o r  become invo lved  i n  

t h e  a c q u a i n t a n c e s h i p  t h a t  you d e s c r i b e d  t o  u s  a  

couple  of  days ago w i t h  Nancy Lamazares when you 

began t o  s o c i a l i z e  w i th  Raul Diaz i n  19723 

A. Nope. 

8 R e l a t i v e  t o  t h e  t i m e  t h a t  you began t o  

keep company s o c i a l l y  w i th  Raul Diaz, when d i d  you 

commence your  involvement w i th  Nancy Lamazarea? 

A What k ind  of involvement? 

9. Any kind--as a  f r i e n d ,  as a l o v e r ,  a s  a 
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co-worker-any k ind?  

A How d i s r e s p e c t f u l  he is i n  t h e  way t h a t  he 

p u t  up t h e  q u e s t i o n  abou t  women, 

Douglas,  s e r i o u s l y ,  you know, you d o n ' t  

look  up t o  m e  like-1973, 

(r A t  t h e  time t h a t  you f i r s t  encounte red  

t h e  then-Ms, Lamazares, how d i d  you meet h e r ?  

R Through t h e  l a t e  husband. 

F German? 

A German, 

Q How d i d  you know German? 

k German was an in formant ,  

(r For  whom? 

A Drug a g e n c i e s ,  

(r Can you t e l l  m e  s p e c i f i c a l l y  t h e  a g e n c i e s  

f o r  which he  informed? 

k I can  t e l l  you s p e c i f i c a l l y  who he  was 

an  i n fo rman t  f o r ,  

a T e l l  me, p l e a s e ,  s ir? 

A Joe Mart inez ,  

Q. C i t y  o f  M i a m i ?  

A No. H e  was a  f e d e r a l  a g e n t ,  I b e l i e v e  he  

was i n  cha rge  of sor t  o f  a s t r i k e  f o r c e  or  whatever  

it was, 

You ehould  know J o e  Mart inez ,  



(r A r e  you t a l k i n g  abou t  t h e  Joe  Mart inez  

who i s  a p r a c t i c i n g  a t t o r n e y ?  

A I d o n ' t  know ~ h a t ~ h e ' i e  do ing  now? 

0 Was he an a t t o r n e y  a t  t h e  t ime?  

A H e  was a government a t t o r n e y ,  

MS.  COHAN: Where d i d  Joe  ~ a r t i n e a  come up? 

When I walked o u t ?  

HR, WILLIAMS: No, t h e  w i t n e s s  h a s  said 

j u s t  b e f o r e  you l e f t  t h e  room t h a t  German 

Lamazares was an in formant ,  

MS. COHAN: For a d rug  agency. 

MR. WILLIAMS t For Joe  Mar t inez ,  The 

w i t n e s s  mentioned by name, 

BY MR. WILbIAMSt 

0. A r e  you t a l k i n g  abou t  t h e  a t t o r n e y  J o e  

Mar t inez  who, a t  one p o i n t ,  was t h e  r e g i o n a l  d i r e c t o r  

f o r  t h e  bureau t h e n  c a l l e d  The Bureau of Narcot ic8:and 

Dangerous Drugs? 

A. Whatever, 

0 That  same J o e  Mar t inez?  

A That  is c o r r e c t ,  

fb To your knowledge, w a s  German Lamazares 

a l s o  p r o v i d i n g  i n fo rma t ion  from t i m e  t o  t i m e  t o  

Ran1 Diaz? 

A I am n o t  aware o f  t h a t ,  
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Q; What was t h e  a c t u a l  s i t u a t i o n  as  a  r e s u l t  

o f  which you m e t  German Lamazares? 

A The what? 

P What was t h e  a c t u a l  s i t u a t i o n  t h a t  gave r i se  

t o  your meet ing o f  German Lamazarea? How d i d  you 

f i r s t  come t o  meet him? 

A Mid-s ix t i es .  I was aware of h i s  e x i s t e n c e  

as  a l i v i n g  person i n  t h e  mid-s fk t ies .  

a Is it your t es t imony ,  t hen ,  t h a t  you 

encounte red  him i n  t h e  c o n t e x t  of  be ing  an  in formant  

when your p a t h q , ' i n - e f f e c t ,  crocsssd wh i l e  you were 

p rov id ing  i n fo rma t ion  t o  Raul ~ i a z  i n  approx imate ly  

19733 

A No, no, no, no, no. No, no, M r .  Williams. 

I was aware t h a t  German Lamazares was a 

l i v i n g  person i n  t h e  mid - s ix t i e s  s i n c e ,  you know, 

t h e r e  were s o  few Cubans i n  Miami, and you cou ld  bump 

i n t o  d i f f e r e n t  p l a c e s  t h a t  were g a t h e r i n g s  f o r  Cubans, 

you know, and T i t i  Lamaaarea, as he  w a s  c a l l e d ,  w a s  

j u s t  a n o t h e r  Cuban, you know, roaming t h e  streets o f  

Miami, and I w a s  n o t  an  in formant  a t  t h e  t i m e ,  and 

I d o n ' t  know i f  he was an informant ,  o r  whatever  he  

w a s  do ing  a t  t h e  t i m e ,  s o  I came up t o  be acqua in t ed ,  

and yau do have a knowledge of  him, t h a t  T i t i  Lamazare 

a t  t h e  t i m e  t h a t  I mentioned t o  you before .  
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9. Here's my q u e s t i o n ,  Rickya You t o l d  us 

t h a t  you m e t  Nancy a t  eome p o i n t  i n  1 9 7 3  th rough  Gsrma 

My q u e s t i o n  t o  you i s  what was t h e  s i t u a t i o n  o r  

c i r cums tance  t h a t  gave r ise  to your hav ing  an 

encoun te r  w i th  Nancy through h e r  then-husband? 

A Everyt ime t h a t  I bumped i n t o  T i t i ,  Nancy 

waa t h e r e .  

f& Then, your  i n i t i a l  a c q u a i n t a n c e s h i p  w i t h  

h e r  w a s  p u r e l y  s o c i a l  th rough  her husband? 

A Righ t ,  

Q When waa it t h a t  German was k i l l e d ?  

MS, CQHANa Objec t ion .  R e r p e t i t i o u ~ ~ .  

You may answer,  

THE WITNESS8 I d o n a t  have t h e  e x a c t  d a t e  

of when Lamazarss was k i l l e d ,  because  h i s  

remains  were--by t h e  t i m e  t h e y  were found, you 

know, t h e y  found a s k e l e t o n ,  I c a n n o t  t e l l  you 

when he  w a s  k i l l e d  o r  what t i m e  he  was k i l l e d ,  

BY MR. WILL1 AMS a 

8 Did you a v e r  a c q u i r e  any i n f o r m a t i o n  from 

any  s o u r c e  t h a t  i n d i c a t e d  t o  you o r  tended t o  i n d i c a t e  

t o  you when it was t h a t  he was k i l l e d  w i t h o u t  r e g a r d  

t o  when h i s  remains  were found? Did you h e a r  from 

anybody? 

A Yea, Some time i n  t h e  months o f  February  



a Did Raul Diaz exprefts to you, in any 

faahion, that he was taking an active or dffioial 

part in the investigation relating to the death  of 
1 

German Lamaeares? 

A The actual investigation of the death of 

German Lamazares officially was conducted by the 

Metro Homicide Department, and Drug Bnforcement 

Administration also sent out a word to all their 

sources and informanta to gather, collect information, 

about his, at the time, disappearance and assumption 

that he was dead, 

(r The question to you, sir, is whether 

Raul Diaz exprdssed to you, at any time, that ha, 

himself, was involved either by his own choice or 

by asuignment from a superior or f o ~  any other 

reason in any part of the investigation into the 

disappearance and eventual death of German Lamaeares? 

A Raul ~ i a z  told me that organized crime 

bureau was also gathering information about the 

disappearance of German Lamazares, and the assumption 

that he might have been killed, or whatever. 

Q And at that time, Raul Diaz, himaelf, 

was in OCB; huh? 

A. That is correct, sir. 



Q Did you acquire information, or in your 

own mind, make the assumption, therefore, that Raul 

Diaz was, in some way or another, investigating the 

disappearance and/or death of German Lamazare~? 

MS. COBAN8 Objection. Speculative. 

You may answer it, 

THE WITNESS8 That is a speculation, 

beaause Raul Diaz., himself, told me that 

organized crime bureau was conducting an 

investigation into the disappearance and 

the assumption that German Lamatares might 

have been killed, 

BP MR. WILLIAMS: 

0 Did he say it to you under circumstantzes 

whioh or in a fashion which indicated to you that he 

was a part of the organized bureau investigation 

into the circumstances? 

A Yea. 

Q When was that information first imparted 

to YOU? 

A The same that it was imparted to me by 

DEA and OCB, SIU, F B I  and XRS, and the whole 

combination of the strike force, you know, agencies 

that were repreeented there, you know, 

It was the-the word was out, aFind the guy 
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o r  what happened t o  t h e  guy.' 

(E. Is t h a t  some t i m e  d u r i n g  t h e  e a r l y  p a r t  o f  

19733 

R That  was February, 1973, at t h e  end of 

FEbruary 1973, more or less, O n  o r  about, 

Oh, I f o r g o t  to  i n c l u d e  t h e  CIA, t o o  i n t o  

t h a t  p r o p o s i t i o n ,  

Q It'was i n  May of  1973, you t o l d  us t h e  

o t h e r  d a y ,  t h a t  you were s h o t  by one whom you thought 

t o  be E l a d i o  Ruiz; i s  that c o r r e c t ?  

A I a m  n o t  i n  t h e  l i p r e a d i n g  o e r v i c e ,  

M r ,  Wi l l iams,  You know, I l i s t e n  with my ears. 

(r It was in May of  1973, a s  you t o l d  u s  the 

o t h e r  d a y ,  t h a t  you were s h o t  by one  whom you b e l i e v e  

t o  be E l a d i o  Rufz; is t h a t  c o r r e c t ?  

A That  i s  c o r r e a t ,  

QI And it i n  a l s o  c o r r e c t ;  i s  it n o t ,  t h a t  

w i t h i n  a very b r i e f  t i m e  a f t e r  t h a t  s h o o t i n g  i n c i d e n t  

occur red ,Rau l  D i a l  a r r i v e d  on t h e  scene? 

A At what scene? 

0. Where you had been s h o t ?  

A That  I s  fa lse ,  

Raul Diaz was n o t  a t  t h e  s c e n e  of my 

shoo t i ng .  f a l r e a d y  answered t o  t h e  q u e s t i o n  who 

were a t  t h e  scene o f  my s h o o t i n g  and who were t h e  
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i n d i v i d u a l s  who I d i d  c a l l  t o  inform t h a t  I had been 

s h o t ,  and t h a t  I was r e q u e s t i n g  an ambulance and t h e  

p resence  o f  t h e  C i t y  of M i a m i  uniform p a t r o l s .  

43 Was Raul Diaa one of t h e  people  you c a l l e d  

from t h e  apar tment  where you took r e f u g e  a f t e r  

shoo t ing?  

A 

Q 

Has ha? 

a. 

e 
A 

Q 

A 

[Ir 

I a l r e a d y  answered t h a t  quea t ion .  

W e l l ,  answer it a g a i n  f o r  me, p l e a s e ,  sir? 

I have t o  answer it aga in?  

Go ahead. 

D o  I? 

P leaae  a i r .  

I c a l l e d  DEA and F B I ,  

A t  t h e  t i m e  t h a t  t h e  shoo t ing  o f  E l a d i o  

Ruia oaau r r ed ,  w i t h i n  a v e r y  s h o r t  p e r i o d  of  t i m e  

t h e r e a f t e r ,  Raul Diaz was a t  t h e  scene  of t h a t  ahoo t i r  

wasn't: he? 

& I d o n ' t  knov, 

(r You have no r e c o l l e c t i o n ?  
I 

A I wasn ' t  t h e r e ,  

Q Did t h e r e  come a t i m e  when you began t o  

p rov ide  Raul Diaa w i t h  i n fo rma t ion  concern ing  any 

one p a r t i c u l a r  o r  s p e c i f i c  case t h a t  he  w a s  i n v e a t i -  

g a t i n g  a a  opposed t o  g e n e r a l  i n fo rma t ion  r e l a t i v e  t o  



a u t i v i t i e s  i n  the Cuban community? 

M S .  COHANI Can you answer y e s  o r  no, 

p l e a s e ?  

THE WITNESSt Yes. 

M S .  COHANI And then ,  w e  w i l l  aes  where it 

goes 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

BY MR* WILLIAMS: 

Q When was t h e  first t i m e  t h a t  t h a t  oocuxred? 

A. The f i r s t  day was when 1 took him o u t  o f  

t h a t  r ide th rough  th lcs . s t ree t s  of  t h e  community, 

0 Then, as I unders tand  your t es t imony ,  

r i g h t  from the s t a x t ,  you began supp ly ing  him w i t h  

i n fo rma t ion  t h a t  focuaad on one p a r t i c u l a r  person 

t h a t  developed i n t o  one p a r t i e u l a r  case; i s  t h a t  

c o r r e c t ?  

A Not a t  the t i m e  t h a t  I took him far t h e  

r i d e .  I took him on t h e  r i d e  under g e n e r a l  i n fo rma t i c  

about  t h e  community, 

9. When d i d  t h e  t i m e  come t h a t  you were 
- - - - - - - - - -  

- - - - -  - - - - - -  - - - - -  - - - -  

prov id ing  Raul Diaz w i t h  i n fo rma t ion  t h a t  was d i r e a t e d  

s p e c i f i c a l l y  towards a p a r t i c u l a r  i n v e s t i g a t o r ,  a 

p a r t i c u l a r  person, w i t h  an eye towards making par- 

t i c u l a r  a r r e s t s  of t h e  people  who were t h e  foaus?  

When d i d  t h a t  f i rs t  happen? 



A. As soon as he s t a r t e d  working OCB, 

0 Do you remember t h e  name o f  t h e  pe rson  

o r  pe r sons  who was o r  were t h e  f i r s t  t a r g e t  o r  t a r g e t s  

o f  such a s p e c i f i c  i n v e s t i g a t i o n ?  

MS. COHANt Yes o r  no? 

THE WITNESS: I do n o t  r eca l l  e x a c t l y  beaauu 

i t  was OCB was i n  a g e n e r a l  g a t h e r i n g  t y p e  o f  

i n fo rma t ion ,  

BY MR, WILLIAMS t 

8 Do you have any r e c o l l e a t i o n  going i n  

chrono1ogica1  aequenae o f  t h e  t i m e  when you f i r s t  

began, w i t h  p a r t i c u l a r i t y  t o  p rov ide  i n f o r m a t i o n  about  

a p a r t i c u l a r  c a s e  o r  person?  

A No. 

Q Have you, a t  any t i m e  d u r i n g  t h e  c o u r s e  of 

your  acqua in t ancesh ip  o r  a s s o c i a t i o n  w i t h  Raul Diaz,  

p rov ided  him in fo rma t ion  p e r t a i n i n g  t o  o r  foczusing 

upon one p a r t i a u l a r  pe rson  o r  group of pe r sons  a s  

opposed t o  g e n e r a l i z e d  i n fo rma t ion?  

A I f  I have a s p e c i f i c  d a t e ?  

0 No, sir. 

Here i s  t h e  q u e s t i o n t  H a s  t h e r e  been an 

o c c a s i o n  t h a t  you a a n  r e o a l l  now when t h e  i n fo rma t ion  

t h a t  you were p rov id ing  t o  Raul  Diaa focumad o r  

t a r g e t e d  on one s p e c i f i c  pe rson  o r  group of  pe r sons  



w i t h  an  eye  towards i n v e s t i g a t i n g  and d e t e c t i n g  

v i o l a t i o n s  of  laws on t h e  p a r t  o f  t h a t  one p a r t i c u l a r  

pe rson  o r  group? 

A M r .  Wil l iams,  i n  answor ing ' t o  your q u e e t i o n ,  

t h e  on ly  a g e n c i e s  t h a t  I was w r i t i n g  r e p o r t s  and 

be ing  d e b r i e f e d  were--the o n l y  ones t h a t  I was 

g e t t i n g  back was t h e  c o u ! t t e r i n t e l l i g e n c e  s e c t i o n  o f  

t h e  C I A ,  t h e  Fede ra l  Bureau of  Investigations, and 

DEA, s o  t h o s e  were t h e  t h r e e  a g e n c i e s  t h a t  were 

r e c e i v i n g  e i t h e r  w r i t t e n  r e p o r t s  o r  X was be ing  

d e b r i e f e d  by t h e . - c a s e  o f f i c e r s  w i t h  r e g a r d  t o  a 

e p e c i f i u  i n d i v i d u a l  and s p e c i f i c  cases. 

T h e  i n fo rma t ion  t h a t  I have provided,  t h a t  I 

was prov id ing  Raul  Diaz and o t h e r  members o f  t h e  

o rgan i zed  crime bureau s e c t i o n  of PSD was i n  t h e i r  

c o n t e x t ,  a s  you can c a t e g o r i z e  it, as a g e n e r a l  

g a t h e r i n g  i n fo rma t ion  p r o p o s i t i o n .  

0. Is it your t es t imony ,  t hen ,  s ir ,  t h a t  t h e r e  

ha s  never  been a t i m e  when you have been an in formant  

o r  8ource  o f  i n fo rma t ion  f o r  Raul Diaz w i t h  r e g a r d  t o  

one p a r t i c u l a r  pe rson  o r  group o f  persona w i t h  an 

eye  towards deve lop ing  c r i m i n a l  c a s e s  a g a i n s t  t h a t  

pe rson  o r  pe rsons?  

A 1 a m  n o t  aware o f  what t h e y  d i d  w i t h  t h e  

i n fo rma t ion  t h a t  I prov ide  t o  OCB or  t o  S I U ,  whioh 
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t h e y  were n o t  paying me, b u t  t h e y  were, you know@ 

i n  t h e  c a t e g o r y  o f ,  you know, a s k i n g  m e  h e l p  i n t o  

whatsvea they were doing or  whoever t h e y  were i n v e a t i -  

g a t i n g  o r  whatever cases they were developing.  

fb Then, as I unders tand your tes t imony,  

t h e r e  has  never  been a time when Raul Diaz ha8 t o l d  

you t h a t  he haa ' wanted in format ion  concern ing  

one p a r t i c u l a r  psraon o r  group of peraone and asked 

you to o b t a i n  it; i s  t h a t  c o r r e c t ?  

B Tha t ' s  i n c o r r e c t ,  because t h e r e  have been 

many and s e v e r a l  occas ions  where Raul Diaz has  asked 

m e  in format ion  about  p a r t i c u l a r  groups,  i n d i v i d u a l r ,  

or oaree, 
w 

0 T e l l  m e  t h e  f i r s t  r e c o l l e c t i o n  o f  such an  

even t?  

A Right  a f t e r -  

MS.  COHANa A r e  you a s k i n g  t h e  t i m e ?  

Objec t ton ,  Vague, 

MR. WILLIAMS: I ' m  a sk ing  about  t h e  f i r s t  

one of those i n s t a n c e s  t h a t  the w i t n e s s  can 

recall  be i d e n t i f i e d  t o  m e  now wi th  p a r t i c u l a r i t :  

THE WITNESS: I already answered to t h a t  

q u e s t i o n ,  Right  a f t e r  he  s tar t  i n  OCB, 

MS, COHANt Object ion,  and I need t o  seat 

you 0 

For t h e  reoord,  my d i s c u s s i o n  wi th  
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M r ,  Morales i s  now going t o  concern  any 

i n v e s t i g a t i o n s  t o  which he  gave in format ion ,  

about  which he  gave in format ion ,  t o  Raul Diaa, 

which may s t i l l  be open and pending, 

MR. WILLIAMS8 W e l l ,  b e f o r e  you l eave ,  

Ma, Cohan, it is  necessary f o r  me t o  no te ,  a t  

t h i s  p o i n t ,  a s t r enuous  o b j e c t i o n  i n t o  t h e  

r eco rd  t o  your  having conferenuea of  t h i s  s o r t  

w i th  t h e  wi tnesa  o u t  of my h e a r i n g  preaence.  

I am going t o  ask ,  r a t h e r ,  t h a t  w e  appear  

b e f o r e  t h e  c o u r t ,  and l e t  t h e  c o u r t  make i t s  

own de t e rmina t ion ,  whether i n  camera o r  o the r -  

w i s e ,  of  No, 1, t h e  p r o p r i e t y  of t h i s  procedure  

that you a rs  a t t empt ing  t o  u t i l i z e ,  and No. 2,  

t h e  e x t e n t  t o  which, i f  a t  a l l ,  t h e r e  e x i a t a  

any p r i v i l e g e  a t t a c h e d  t o  t h e  i n fo rma t ion  t h a t  

I am seek ing  f o r  t h e  w i tnes s ,  

I a m  a s k i n g  you t o  r e f r a i n  from having 

t h e s e  d i a c u s a i o n s  w i th  M r ,  Morales u n t i l  w e  

can go b e f o r e  t h e  judge, 

M S ,  COIIANa Okay, I a m  due i n  c o u r t  a t  

l a 3 0  anyway, s o  why d o n ' t  w e  break  f o r  lunah,  

and I w i l l  see you t h e r e  at l a303  

MR. WILLIAMSa Okay, Good enough. 
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(Whereupon, a s h o r t  recess was taken, 

a f t e r  which t h e  fo l l owing  proceeding8 were had i n  

Courtroom 2-5 b e f o r e  t h e  Honorable Gerald  ~ o g a n : )  

MR, WILLIAMS: There is an i s s u e  t h a t  

now becomes r e l a t s d  t o  t h i s  t h a t  a a u s e s  m e  t o  . 

have imposed upon t h e  c o u r t ' s  t i m e  t h i s  a f t e r -  

noon a r i e i n g  o u t  o f  t h e  d e p o e i t i o n  when we 

r e c e s s e d  a t  t h e  noon hour ,  

Take my hypotheses ;  if you w i l l ,  Your Honor, 

THE COURT: Do w e  have a ce r t i f i ed  qua6t ion7 

MR. WILLIAMS: Kind of ,  

THE COURT: E i t h a r  w e  do, o r  w e  don ' t .  

MS. COHAN: W e  don' t, 

MR. WILLIAMS: W e  have a c e r t i f i e d  area, 

Your Honor, 

THE COURT: You can  o n l y  have a c e r t i f i e d  

area i f  you have endeavored t o  ask t h e  w i t n e s s  

q u e s t i o n s  conoern ing  t h a t  area, and t h e  w i tnose  

h a s  r e f u s e d  t o  answer them, 

MR. WILLIAMS: Your Honor, I have a s i t u a t i c  

i n  which t h e  p r o s e c u t o r  t h i n k 8  it necessary and 

a p p r o p r i a t e  t o  c o n f e r  w i t h  t h e  w i t n e a s  b e f o r e  

p e r m i t t i n g  him t o  answer the q u e s t i o n s  i n  a 

c e r t a i n  l i n e ,  which l i n e  i s  ex t remely  s e n s i t i v e  

t o  which I have o b j e c t e d ,  and t h e  p r o s e c u t o r  
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has been cogn iaan t  enough of h e r  reapons i -  

b i l i t i e a  as a l a w  enforaement o f f i c e r  o f  t h e  

s ta te ,  and n o t  j u s t  h e r e  t o  l i t i g a t e  an 

a d v e r s a r y  proceeding,  t o  have acquiesced i n  

my r e q u e s t  that b e f o r e  she  do t h a t ,  t h a t  w e  

have t h e  matter treated by Your Honor. 

Now, I c a n ' t  d e s c r i b e  it t o  you i n  a 

vacuum, Judge, 

THE COURT: Yes,  because r i g h t  now- 

M S .  COHANt L e t  m e  d e s c r i b e  it t o  you 

b r i e f l y ,  

THE COURT: A l l  r i g h t .  

M S .  COHAN: Ricardo Morales h a s  i n d i c a t e d  

t h a t ,  f o r  t h e  past t a n  y e a r s ,  approximate ly ,  

he has been g i v i n g  i n fo rma t ion  t o  v a r i o u s  

l a w  enforcement agenc ies .  

Mr. William8 h a s  asked  of .him r p e c i f i o  

i n fo rma t ion  which he  hag r e l a t e d  to law enforce-  

ment agenc i e s  and t o  whom he h a s  r e l a t e d  t h a t  

informat ion.  

I would sugges t  t o  Your Honor t h a t  some of 

t h o s e  i n v e s t i g a t i o n s  are  s t i l l  open and pending, 

and t o  divulge t h a t  i n fo rma t ion  t h a t  M r .  Morale8 

r e l a y e d  t o  l a w  enforcement a g e n c i e s  while he 

has and i s  i n  a p o s i t i o n  of  a c o n f i d e n t i a l  
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informant  would n o t  on ly  j eopa rd i ze  t h e  

i n v e s t i g a t i o n ,  b u t  would j eopa rd i ze  M r .  Morale8 

a s  w e l l .  

MR,  WILLIAMS^ E X C U S ~  me, 

THE COURTS A l l  r i g h t ,  Go ahead, Ma. Cohan, 

MS.  COHANI What I a m  r e q u e s t i n g  i s  t h e  

a b i l i t y  t o  c o n f e r  w i th  M r .  Morales concerning 

what h i s  in format ion  was, s o  I can t h e n  determine 

i f  t h o s e  are open i n v e s t i g a t i o n s ,  

THE COURT: M r ,  Williams? 

MR. WILLIAHSt Close,  Your Honor, b u t  n o t  

q u i t e ,  

The a r e a  of i n q u i r y  p r e s e n t l y  is  t h e  n a t u r e  

and e x t e n t  of t h e  r e l a t i o n s h i p  and i n t e r a c t i o n  

between Morales and one Raul Diaz, who p r e s e n t l y  

is esconsed as a  L ieu t enan t  i n  t h e  Metro Dade 

P o l i a e  Department's homicide s e c t i o n ,  t h e  

i n q u i r y  a r i s i n g  o u t  of  t h e  f a c t  t h a t ,  No. 1, 

L ieu tenan t  Diaz, a l though  n o t  named by t h e  

S t a t e  as a w i t n e s s  i n  t h i s  case, played a  

s u b s t a n t i a l  r o l e  i n  t h e  i n i t i a l  development o f  

aoms of t h e  in format ion  t h a t  has  become p a r t  o f  

t h e  body of probable  cause  ven tured  by t h e  S t a t e  

i n  support of i t s  f i r s t  a p p l i c a t i o n ,  and by 

v i r t u e  of  t h e  f a c t  t h a t  Diaz, more t han  any o t h e ~  
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person  who f r e q u e n t s  t h e  s treets  o f  Dade County, 

ha s ,  and f o r  a l o t  of y e a r s ,  h a s  had an 

ex t r eme ly ,  what some would say ,  v a r y  c u r i o u s  

r e l a t i o n s h i p  w i t h  Ricardo Morales. 

I t  is  neces sa ry ,  t h e r e f o r e .  f o r  u s  t o  t a k e  

a c l o s e  l ook  a t  M r .  D i a x  th rough  t h e  eyes  and 

mouth of M r .  Morales ,  and t h e  a r e a  o f  quee t ion in l  

t h a t  has given  r i se  t o  t h e  s i t u a t i o n  p r e s e n t l y  

i s  t h a t  a r e a  t h a t  developed a t  t h e  t i m e  t h a t  

Moralas  f i r s t  began supp ly ing  fn foxmat ion  t o  

L i e u t e n a n t  Diaz--about 1972 o r  1973, i f  t h e  Cour 

wants  t o  know it, s o  t h e n  i n  a s k i n g  M r .  Morale8 

t o  t e l l  u s  t h e  s p e c i f i a s  of t h e  in fo rmat ion .  

I shou ld  t e l l  t h e  Cour t ,  a l s o ,  t h a t  any 

p r e l i m i n a r y  questions add re s sed  to t h i s  i s a u e ,  

M r .  Moralee haa t o l d  u s  t h a t  he waa o n l y  r e p o r t i  

i n  w r i t i n g  t o  and be ing  pa id  by t h r e e  a g e n c i e s  

a t  t h e  time-the C I A ,  t h e  Drug Enforcement 

Admin i s t r a t i on ,  and t h e  F B I ,  b u t  he w a s ,  a t  t h e  

same t i m e  c r e a t i n g  and purau ing  what t u r n e d  o u t  

t o  be a c l o s e  r e l a t i o n s h i p  w i t h  L i e u t e n a n t  Diaz. 

I f  I t r i e d  t o  a c q u a i n t  you, Judge,  w i t h  

a l l ,  of t h e  c r o s s  currents .  .-- 

THE COURTt W e l l ,  w i t h o u t  i n t e r r u p t i n g  you- 

I a m  i n t e r r u p t i n g  you, b u t  w e  d i d  d i s c u s s  t h i s - -  
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I lose t r a c k  o f  t h e  d a t e s  now--I t h i n k  yes t e rday  

o r  t h e  day b e f o r e  i n  chambera, when ano the r  

q u e s t i o n  was p u t  t o  M r .  Morales concern ing  h i s  

m l a t i o n a h i p  w i t h  Raul Diao, 

Do you a l l  r e c a l l  what t h a t  was? 

MR. WILLXAMS! Yes, Your Honor, 

THE COURT: The Court ,  a t  t h a t  t i m e ,  

o rde red  t h e  answer sealed, s o  I a m  aware o f  

what you are t e l l i n g  m e ,  W e  discussed it at t h a t  

p a r t i c u l a r  moment. 

MR. WILLXAMSs Thi s  is n o t  a  f a c e t  of t h a t ,  

Judge, 

X have asked Mr. Hora les  t o  t e l l  m e  t h e  

s p s d f i o a  i n  terme o f  p a r t i u u l a r  i n v e s t i g a t i o n s  

and/or  p a r t i c u l a r s  t o  which he w a s  p rov id ing  

in fo rma t ion  f o r  Diaz a t  o r  around t h e  t i m e  o f  

t h e  k i l l i n g  t o  which Morale8 now f r e e l y  admits  

f o r  which he  was prosecu ted  t e n  y e a r s  ago, b u t  

for which he was n o t  s u s c e p t i b l e  t o  e f f e c t i v e  

p rosecu t ion  because of a wi tnes s  problem. 

THE COURT8 W e  discussed t h a t  l a e t  t i m e .  

I t  was a l l  p u t  of  t h e  prooeedings.  

MR. WILLIAMS: The p rosecu to r  s a y s  that 

she  i s  concerned about  an i n t r u s i o n  upon ongoing 

i n v e s t i g a t i o n s ,  



There is a th ree -ysa r  s t a t u t e  l i m i t a t i o n s  

i n  t h e  s t a t e ,  b u t  f o r  f i r s t  deg ree  murders, 

which r e a l l y  d o n ' t  a r i s e  i n  t h e  c o n t e x t  o f  

t h e  q u e s t i o n  t h a t  I have been p u t t i n g  t o  M r ,  

Morales,  

There is no i n v e s t i g a t i o n  t h a t  cou ld  have 

bean a f o o t  i n  1973 o r  1974 o r  1975 t h a t  aou ld  

have,  as i t s  purpose now, f o r  any substantive 

o f f e n s e s  supposedly  committed back then ,  

THE COURT: L e t  m e  s t o p  you r i g h t  t h e r e ,  

How, t h e  s t a t u t e  o f  l imitat ions--how many 

t i m e s  have we a l l  t r i e d  c a s e s ,  especially i n  

f a d e r a 1  c o u r t ,  where t h e  a c t  invo lve8  a  aon- 

s p i r a c y  t h a t  goes baak, and i n  some cases, 

I can ramember 1 2 ,  13  y e a r s  p r i o r  t o  t h e  a o t u a l  

i nd i c tmen t  be ing  r e t u r n e d ,  and t h a t  h a s  been 

pe rmi t t ed  aa  ev idence  t o  go b e f o r e  a j u ry ,  and thi  

fo l l owing  up to t h e  a u r r e n t  charge ,  s o  wh i l e  it 

might not uoncern i t s e l f  w i th  something t h a t  oan 

be prosecu ted  as a s u b s t a n t i v e  o f f e n s e ,  because 

that s t a t u t e  has  run  o u t ,  beaause it is a e r t a i n l !  

w i t h i n  t h e  rea lm of r ea sonab le  p r o b a b i l i t y  t h a t  

it oauld form t h e  b a s i s  f o r  a c a n s p i r a e y  t h a t  is 

long con t inu ing ,  and is piakad up w i t h i n  the 

s t a t u t e  of l i m i t a t i o n s ,  and t h e  caeea  1 a m  
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r e f e r r i n g  t o  a r e  Black Tuna, t h e  ~ongshoremen 'o  

c a s e ,  which I a m  i n t i m a t e l y  f a m i l i a r  wi th ,  I 

had J o e  Tei t lebaum t e s t i f y i n g  t o  c o n v e r e a t i o n s  

t h a t  he had w i t h  o t h e r  pe rsons ,  t e n ,  twelve  

years ago, 

MR. W I L L I M S t  Y e s ,  Your Honor, 

THE COURT3 And t h a t  w a s  a l l  a d m i s s i b l e  

i n t o  ev idence  as p a r t  of t h i s  c o n t i n u i n g  con- 

s p i r a c y ,  a l t hough  he  wasn ' t  uharged w i t h  con- 

e p i r i n g  baok then ,  b u t  i t ' s  p e r m i t t e d  i n t o  

miidence,  t o  show t h e  c o n t i n u i t y  of  a a t i o n  o v e r  

a pe r iod  o f  t i m a .  

MR. CAGNEY: Wasn8t t h e r e  a Rico i n  t h a t ?  

THZ COURT: There was a Rico i n  t h e r e ,  

and a l s o ,  a Riao i n  Black Tuna as  w e l l ,  b u t  

s t i l l ,  a t  t h e  same t i m e ,  1 d o n ' t  know what 

b e a r i n g  any' of  t h e s e  m a t t e r s  t h a t  may have t aken  

p l a c e  f i v e ,  t e n  years ago hawe on what map be 

cons ide red  a u r r e n t  p rosecu t ions ,  so t h e r e f o r e ,  

what I a m  going to do is,  I am go ing  t o  pe rmi t  

Ma, Cohan t o  t a l k  to M r .  Moralee, and i n  t h e  

event t h a t  t h e r e  are any pending i n v e s t f g a t i o n a  

a t  t h i s  t i m e  t h a t  can be aompromised by 

M r ,  Morales be ing  aaked q u e s t i o n s  as t o  who h e  

is informing on and t o  whom he  is  g i v i n g  a e r t a i n  
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information, the'n, I am going to sustain the 

State's objection to that, 

MR. WILLIAMSs What I would ask, then, 

is this: If the prosecutor comes away from these 

conversations with the witneaa with the judgment 

or the feeling that his answers would, of 

necessity, disclose some continuing or present 

continuing investigation, I am going to ask 

Yoar Honor-aak that Your Honor instruct or 

order the prosecutor to provide to the court 

for'in camera inspection and sealing and retan- 

tion from sworn statement from the proseuutor 

of the specific investigator, investigations, 

that the inquiry has revealed as well as a 

statement that, to her own knowledge, to her 

own objective knowladge, it is the aubject of 

an ongoing investigation, 

THE COURTS Let me do thi8. 

I am not going to rule on that point at this 

tine, because it may vary well be that Ms. Cohan 

may announce to you that she has talked to 

Mr, Morales, and in faat ,  there is nothing at 

this time that he is doing in the way of infornix 

that constitutes a pending investigation. 

Let ' a  see,  In the event there is, then, 
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I w i l l  aons ide r  your r e q u e s t  a t  t h a t  p a r t i c u l a r  

t i m e .  

MR. WILLIAMS: May 1 assume, Youz Honor, 

t h a t  it w i l l  be t h e  case ,  of  course ,  t h a t  t h e  

p rosecu to r  i s  n o t  t o  d i s c u s s  any s u b s t a n t i v e  

d e t a i l s  of tes t imony a l r e a d y  given o r  tes t imony 

t h a t  fo reeeab ly  could come from Morales, b u t  

r a t h e r ,  j u s t  t o  l i e t e n  and t a k e  what she  has  

to-- 

THE COURT8 She w i l l  a sk  him what it is 

t h a t  he i s  a u r r s n t l y  supplying i f ,  i n  f a c t ,  he 

is  c u r r e n t l y  supplying anyone, who h e  is 

supplying,  what it r e l a t e s  to, and then ,  i n  t u r n ,  

whether o r  n o t  t h a t  is a pending i n v e s t f g a t i o n .  

MS. COHAN: Judge, what I a m  afao i n d i a a t i n 5  

t o  t h e  c o u r t  i a  thqt in format ion  may have been 

fu rn i shed  i n  t h e  p a s t  i s  a t i l l  t h e  a u b j e e t  of an 

ongoing i n v e a t i g a t i o n .  

THE COURT: That is t h e  reason I p o i n t  o u t  

the cam, and I a m  f a m i l i a r  w i th  what happened 

way back then ,  and g e n e r a l l y ,  t h e  way--I have 

t o  r u l e  t h i s  way is q u i t e  f r ank ly ,  i f  you have 

an  informant  who i a  going t o  be a w i t n e s r  i n  one 

caae, and then ,  I pe rmi t t ed  i n q u i r y  a s  t o  other 

cases t h e  informant is  working on a t  t h i s  t i m e ,  
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it may v e r y  w e l l  be t h a t  t h e  a o u r t  i s  caua ing  

t h e  exposure ,  and e v e n t u a l l y ,  t h e r e f o r e ,  t h e  

compsomiae o f  numerous i n v e s t i g a t i o n s  t h a t  are 

ongoing. 

The Cour t  f e e l s  t h a t  when I b a l l  one 

r i g h t  a g a i n s t  t h e  o t h e r  r i g h t ,  I t h i n k  t h a t  

de fendan t s  are p e r s o n a l l y  damaged by n o t  per-  

m i t t i n g  t h i s  i n fo rma t ion  as opposed t o  damaging 

ongoing i n v e s t i g a t i o n s ,  because  q u i t e  f r a n k l y ,  

t h e r e f o r e ,  any case where you have an  in formant ,  

you aou ld  b r i n g  an in formant  i n ,  and compromise 

e v e r y  a i n g l e  i n v e s t i g a t i o n  t h a t  t h a t  in formant  

i s  i n ~ o l ~ ~ d  i n ,  and I d o n ' t  t h i n k  t h e  l a w  

con t ewp la t a s  t h a t .  

MR. WILLIAMS: On t h e  o t h e r  hand, Your 

Honor, it would be a v e r y  e a s y  t h i n g  i f  a 

p r o e e c u t i n g  a t t o r n e y  were i n a l i n e d  t o  do  it, 

e i t h a r  t o  p r o t e c t  t h e  case o r  p r o t e o t  t h e  wi tnes t  

from embarrassment o r  p o s s i b l e  c r i m i n a l  

p r o s e c u t i o n ,  h imse l f ,  s imply  to a t t e m p t  t o  

i n t e x d i a t  o r  t h w a r t  i n t e r r o g a t i o n  on d e p o s i t i o n  

by c l a iming  t h a t  v i r t u a l l y  any q u e s t i o n  t h a t  

cou ld  be asked  might p e r t a i n  t o  some ongoing 

i n v e s t i g a t i o n  if t h e  p r o s e c u t o r  i a  t h e  one t h a t  

h a s  t h e  u n i l a t e r a l  d i s c r e t i o n  t o  make t h a t  

I 



judgment, 

THE COURTS M r .  Williams, i t ' s  l i k e  every- 

t h i n g  e l s e  i n  mind, and t h a t  is, M r .  Hora les ,  

f o r  exanple ,aan be l y i n g  up one a i d e  and down 

t h e  o t h e r .  

Our e n t i r e  system re l ies  upon t h e  b a r i a  

p r e a i a e  and t h e  b a s i c  premise i s  t h a t  o f f i c e r s  

of t h e  c o u r t  w i l l  a o t  as o f f i c e r s  o f  t h e  u o u r t  

and w i l l  n o t  d e l i b e r a t e l y  and knowingly wislead 

t h e  a o u r t ,  

I t  a l s o  rests upon t h e  premise  t h a t  i f  

people  t a k e  an  o a t h ,  t hey  a r e  expec ted  t o  t e l l  

t h e  t r u t h ,  

Now, of course ,  w e  can go beyond t h a t ,  

b u t  t h e r e  a r e  c ier ta in  basic i n t e g r i t i a s  t h a t  

w s  have t o  r e l y  upon, 

I f  n o t ,  then ,  of course ,  e v e r y t h i n g  i a  n o t  

o n l y  open *o euspeut  whiah, under many c i r cuo -  

s t a n c e s  it should ,  b u t  a t  t h e  same t i m e ,  you 

a l s o  have va r ioua  o t h e r  c o n s i d e r a t i o n s ,  

I cannot  comp~omise ongoing i n v e s t i g a t i o n s  

by law enforcemen* agenc ie s  j u s t  because 

Mr. Morale8 may happen t o  be t h e i r  informant.  

MR. WILLIAMS! Your Honor, I am n o t  

p repared  t o  abandon t h e  f i r e t  premise t h a t  
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t h e  c o u r t  r ecognized  a moment ago y e t ,  i n  

t h a t  i n s o f a r  as t h e  second premise,  t h e  

p r e s u p p o s i t i o n  t h a t  when people  t a k e  an o a t h ,  

t h e y  raoognixe  t h e  r e s p o n a i b i l i t y \ t o  t e l l  t h e  

t r u t h ,  I l a s t  s a w  it running  down t h e  s t e p s  of  

t h e  J u s t i c e  Bu i ld ing  screaming abou t  t w o  week8 

ago,  

MS. COHAHt Your Honor, I d o n 8 t  r e a l l y  

b e l i e v e  w e  a r e  here t o  d i s a u a e  M r .  ~ i l l i a w 8 @  

pessimism and h i e  view of  human n a t u r e  a t  t h i s  

p o i n t ,  

THE COURT: Xn any even t ,  l e t 8 a  go u p r t a i r n  

and c o n t i n u e  w i t h  H r ,  Moraleea d e p o s i t i o n .  

(Whereupon, a s h o r t  r e c s s e  w a s  taken after 

which t h e  fo l l owing  procaad ings  were had i n  the 

d e p o e i t i o n  room) 

HR, WILLIAMSt Ineamuch as i t ' 8  a l r e a d y  

a q u a r t e r  t o  t h r e e ,  and w e  ear l ier  ag reed  t h a t  

w e  are n o t  going t o  work p a s t  t h r e e  today ,  

b u t  there is  no s e n s e  i n  o u r  hanging a r o m a  

w h i l e  you c h a t  w i t h  t h e  w i t n e s s  any l o n g e r  o r  

even a t t e m p t i n g  t o  resume t h e  t a k i n g  of  

t e s t imony  now, so w e  w i l l  just recess t h e  

d e p o s i t i o n  u n t i l  Monday morning a t  t e n  08c lock .  

MR. DIA&: What t i m e ,  sir? 



MR, WILLIAMS: Ten, 

MR. DIAZa I t hough t  you s a i d  e i g h t  o ' c lock ,  

MS. C O H A N ~  Okay. See you Monday, 

MR, WILLIAMSa Rina, b e f o r e  we go, 1 

should  l i k e  t o  hear you s a y  something t o  t h e  

witness abou t  his r e s p o n s i b i l i t y  t o  r e f r a i n .  

from having any c o n v e r s a t i o n s  w i t h  e i t h e r  you 

o r  w i t h  O f f i c e r  Diaz about  any th ing  t h a t  h a s  

been o r  r ea sonab ly  w i l l  be t h e  s u b j s o t  of h i s  

t e s t imony  d u r i n g  t h i s  i n t e r i m  pe r iod ,  

MS, COHAN: M r ,  Wil l iams,  bo th  Detecrtive 

Dias and myself are w e l l  aware of our respen- 

s i b i l i t i s e ,  and t h a t  i s  a l l  X w i l l  p u t  on t h e  

r eco rd ,  

MR, WILLIAHSa I would l i k e  t o  know that. 

t h e  w i tnesa  h a s  an  unders tand ing  of h i s  rsspon- 

s i b i l i t y ,  s o  t h a t  i n  t h e  event t h e r e  is any 

breaoh,  it can be a t t r i b u t e d  t o  him r a t h e r  t h a n  

an e f f o r t  to a t t r i b u t e  it t o  anybody else, 

M S ,  COHANt M r ,  Wil l iams,  M r ,  Morale8 and 

myaelf have had a discussion a s  t o  h i s  reapon- 

s i b i l i t i e s  d u r i n g  t h e  pendency o f  t h i 8  d s p o s i t i o r  

MR. WILLIAMS: Okay, Good enough, 

THE WITNESS8 What t h e  word ab reacha  means? 

M S ,  COHAN: Transgress ion .  
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THE WITNESS: Can I t a l k  d u r i n g  t h e  

weekend t o  somebody? Can I go t o  a m v i e ?  

Can X e x p r e e s  myself? Can I say whatever  1 

want t o  say abou t  M r .  W i l l i a m ,  p e r s o n a l l y ?  

MS. COHAN: Sure.  

MR. WILLIAMSt I i n v i t e  you t o  do t h a t ,  

and hope t h a t  you w i l l ,  80 t h a t  come Monday 

morning, a l l  of t h e  venom and s p l e e n  w i l l  have 

been purged from your  syntem, 

THE WITNESSI You d o n ' t  have t o  w a i t  u n t i l  

Monday i f  you want t o  h e a r ,  

MR. WILLIAMSt Won't be a n y t h i n g  I haven ' t  

heard b e f o r e ,  

THE WITNESS a Asehole. 

(Whereupon, a t  2:SO o ' c lock  porn,, t h e  

d e p o e i t i o n  was recessed u n t i l  Monday, A p r i l  12 ,  1982, 

a t  10  o ' c l ock  a,m,) 

- 0 - m m  



CERTIFICATE 

STATE OF FLORIDA ) 
t SS. 

COUNTY OF DADE ) 

I, JOYCEE WAX, Shorthand Repor te r  and Notary 

P u b l i c  i n  and f o r  t h e  S t a t e  of  F l o r i d a  a t  Large,  

do hereby  c e r t i f y  t h a t  I r e p o r t e d  t h e  d e p o s i t i o n  of 

RICARDO MORALES NAVARETTE, a w i t n e s s  called by t h e  

Defendant i n  t h e  above-s ty led  causes  t h a t  s a i d  w i tnes s  

w a s  d u l y  sworn by me; and t h a t  t h e  fo rego ing  pages,  

numbered from 1 t o  and i n c l u d i n g  69,  are a t r u e  and 

c o r r e a t  r e a o r d  o f  t h e  d e p o s i t i o n  g iven  by .aid witneaa 

I f u r t h e r  a e r t i f y  t h a t  I am n o t  an a t t o r n e y  o r  

counse l  of any of t h e  p a r t i e s t  nor a  r e l a t i v e  o r  

employee o f  any a t t o r n e y  oz  counse l  uonneated w i t h  

t h i s  a c t i o n ;  nor  f i n a n c i a l l y  i n t e r e s t e d  i n  s a i d  uause. 

WITNESS my hand and o f f i c i a l  s e a l  a t  M i a m i ,  

Dade County, F l o r i d a ,  on t h i a  20% day o f  A p r i l  1982 


